Collective Bargaining Agreement

between

Kent County Memorial Hospital

and

United Nurses & Allied Professionals

Local 5008

July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2029

Clerical, Technical, Service and

Skilled Maintenance





TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1 – Non-discrimination	1
Article 2 – Management's Rights	1
Article 3 – No Strike – No Lockout	1
Article 4 – Recognition	
Article 5 - Initially Left Blank	4
Article 6 Union Security and Dues Deduction	
Article 7 and 8 - Initially Left Blank	
Article 9 – Probationary Period	6
Article 10 – Orientation	
Article 11 - Seniority	7
Article 12 - Categories of Employees and Payroll Types	8
Article 13 - Grievance and Arbitration Procedure	9
Article 14 - Hours of Work, Schedules and Breaks	11
Article 15 – Shift Rotation	13
Article 16 - Floating (not applicable to EVS job classifications)	13
Article 17 - Annual Evaluations, Personnel Files, Discipline and Termination	14
Article 18 - Employment, Posting and Transfer Practices	16
Article 19 - Layoffs and Recalls	18
Articles 20, 21, 22, and 23 Intentionally Left Blank	23
Article 24 – Paid Leaves of Absence	23
Article 25 - Unpaid Leaves of Absence Federal and Rhode Island Medical and Family	
Leaves of Absence	
Article 26 - Light Duty and Alternative Assignment	29
Article 27 – Health and Safety	30
Article 28 – Holidays	31
Article 29 – Vacation	
Article 30 – Salary	34
Article 31 – Overtime	35
Article 32 - Shift, Weekend and Other Differentials	35
Article 33 - On-Call, Call-Back Pay (not applicable to EVS job classifications except	
Section 15 – Restricted Call)	
Article 34 – Inclement Weather/Natural Disaster	
Article 35 – Employee Assistance Program	39
Article 36 – Professional Development and Tuition Assistance Programs	40
Article 37 – Flexible Benefits Program	41
Article 38 – Health Insurance	
Article 39 – Dental Insurance	43
Article 40 – Life Insurance and Accidental Death and Dismemberment	
Article 41 – Long-Term Disability (LTD) Insurance	43
Article 42 - CNE 403(b) Match & Savings Plan	44
Article 43 – Per Diems	
Article 44 - Intentionally Left Blank	
Article 45 – Professional Issues Committee	45

Article 46 – Separability	45
Article 47 – Printing of Agreement	
Article 48 – Duration	
Article 49 – Intentionally Left Blank	
Article 50 – Miscellaneous	
Article 51 – Paid Time Off	
Article 52, 53, and 54 – Intentionally Left Blank	
Article 55 – Mutual Dignity & Respect	
Article 56 – Successors and Assigns	
THEORY OF DROODS AND AND TODAKED	**************************************

Article 1 - Non-discrimination

The Hospital agrees to continue its policies of non-discrimination on the basis of any individual's race, color, national origin, religious affiliation, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression, marital status, age or disability. The Hospital agrees to continue its commitment to a workplace free from harassment on account of any of these factors. The Hospital agrees that there will be no discrimination against any employee because he or she is a member of the Union or because he or she engages in any activities protected by the National Labor Relations Act.

Article 2 - Management's Rights

- §1 Except as expressly limited by the provisions of this Agreement, the Employer retains all the rights which preexisted this Agreement, including, without limiting the foregoing, the right to: manage the operations of the Hospital and direct the workforce; hire employees of its own selection; maintain order and efficiency; extend, maintain, curtail, consolidate or terminate its operations; determine the size and location of its facility or facilities; determine the type and amount of equipment to be used and the assignment of the work; transfer employees; discipline, suspend and discharge employees for just cause; lay off for lack of work; determine the number of, and assignment to, shifts, departments and units, the number of days in the work week, hours of work and the number of persons to be actively employed by the Employer at any time; employ temporary employees; post and require employees to observe rules and regulations; determine the methods and scheduling of services to be performed by employees, including the means and processes of such services; set standards of professional conduct, service, clinical competency, productivity and performance and maintain performance records for all jobs; subcontract work; permit supervisory employees to perform bargaining unit work; and, in general, to determine what work should be performed as well as when, where, how and by whom such work shall be performed.
- The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations, which resulted in this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the understanding and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement.

Article 3 - No Strike - No Lockout

- The term "strike" shall include any strike, sympathy strike, sit down, slow down, and any other stoppage or interruption of work.
- §2 The Union agrees that there shall be no strikes by the Union or any bargaining unit employees during the term of this Agreement. The Hospital agrees that there shall be no lockouts during the term of this Agreement.

- Any employee who causes, encourages or participates in a strike in violation of this article may be discharged and only the question of whether or not the employee did in fact cause, encourage or participate in such action shall be subject to the grievance and arbitration provision of this Agreement.
- Should a strike or other violation of this Article occur during the term of this Agreement, the Union shall immediately upon receipt of written notice from the Hospital take all reasonable action required to bring an immediate end to the strike.

Article 4 - Recognition

The Hospital recognizes the Union as the exclusive collective bargaining representative of all full-time and regular part-time and per diem as specified in the Certification of Representation dated 1/24/14, 10/16/14, 8/4/16, 11/10/16, 1/10/17, 5/21/18, 7/23/19 and 6/8/2020. All employees hired after June 1, 2016 for any position at the Hospital that requires a nursing assistant certification and is not otherwise excluded from the bargaining unit pursuant to NLRB guidelines shall be considered part of the bargaining unit.

Clerical	Technical	Service & Skilled Maintenance	
Clinical Medical Secretary,	 Anesthesia Tech/Orderly 	Anesthesia Assistant	
Technical Services	Cardiac Stress Testing	Boiler Room Operator	
 Customer Service Rep, HME 	Technician	Carpenter	
Document Coordinator	Cardiology Coordinator	 Certified Sterilization Tech. 	
Financial Coor Infusion Unit	Cardiovascular Technician	Cleaning Aide I	
Financial Counselor	Cat Scan Tech	Cleaning Aide II	
Insurance Coordinator, HME	Cath Lab/IR Technician	Cook I	
Lead Customer Service Rep	CT Tech (certified)	Cook!!	
 Lead, Patient Access Services 	CT/MRI Technologist	Driver/Tech II, HME	
Lead, Radiology Aide	Cytotechnologist	Equipment Technician	
Marketing Representative,	Echo Tech/Vascular Tech	Food Service Associate	
HME	Echocardiographer Registered	Gen. Maint. III Mechanical	
Medical Sec. Cardiac Cath Lab	Echocardiographer, Non-	General Maintenance II	
Medical Transcriptionists, Lab	Registered	General Maintenance III	
OPIU Oncology Services	EEG Technologist	Groundskeeper	
Secretary	EKG Technician II	HME Store Clerk	
Patient Access Associate	Emergency Room Technician	Hospitality Associate	
Radiology Aide	Endoscopy Technician	HVAC Mechanic	
Secretary Medical Clerk	Hyperbaric CHT/Safety	Journeyman Electrician	
Secretary, Sleep Center	Coordinator	Journeyman Plumber	
 Secretary, Technical Services 	Kent North Ultrasound Tech	Lead Barista	
Secretary, Vascular Lab	Lead Cardiac Testing Tech II	Lead Boiler Room Operator	
Sleep Lab Aide	Lead Echo Tech Registered	Lead Cert. Sterilization Tech	
Staffing Coordinator	Lead Instrumentation Specialist	Lead Electrician	
Surgical Services Secretary	Lead Preadmission Tech	Lead Environmental Services Aide	
Unit Secretary	Kent Noth Ultrasound Tech	Lead Groundskeeper	
Unit Secretary Emer. Dept.	Certified	Lead HVAC Mechanic	

Kont	Morth	PAN	Tock

- Kent North Mamographer
- Lead Polysomnographic Tech
- LPN, ED
- · LPN, Inpatient Care
- · Medical Laboratory Technician
- Medical Technologist
- Mental Health Worker
- MRI Tech
- MRI/MS Tech
- Non-certified polysomnographic tech
- Nuclear Med Tech
- Nursing Assistant
- Phlebotomist
- Phlebotomist, Send Out
- Point of Care Coord, Techno/Tech
- Polysomnographic Technician
- Pre-Admission Technician
- Rad Tech, Spec Procedures Cert
- Radiol Technol, Spec Procedure
- Radiologic Technologist
- Rad Tech-Mammographer
- Rad Tech-Mammographer, Level
 II
- Respiratory Therapist
- · Respiratory Therapist, HME
- Satellite Lab Coordinator/Technologist (MT)/Technician (MLT)
- Secretary/Nursing Assistant (WRC)
- Sendout Specialist
- Senior Radiologic Technologist
- Sleep Aide
- Surgical Technologist
- · Surgical Technologist, Certified
- Ultrasound Tech (sonographer)
- Ultrasound Tech (certified)

- Linen Aide
- Mechanic
- Painter
- Room Service Operator
- Sterilization Technician
- SuppReceivingClerkFoodServices
- Surgical Inventory Case Specialist
- Surgical Inventory Coordinator/Lead
- Transport Aide
- Telephone Operator

- §2 Union representatives will be allowed access to Hospital premises to meet with Hospital representatives and when necessary to process grievances with the understanding that reasonable advance notice will be given to the senior Human Resources executive or designee.
- §3 The Hospital will provide bulletin boards for exclusive Union use at the following locations: One on each Nursing Unit, one bulletin board in the ASC building, one

bulletin board in the Emergency Department, one bulletin board in the Laboratory, one bulletin board in the Engineering Department, one bulletin board in the Home Medical Equipment Department, one bulletin board in the Patient Access department, one bulletin board in the Food & Nutrition Department, one in the Environmental Services employee staff lounge, one bulletin board in Diagnostic Imaging, one bulletin board in Respiratory, one in the Operating Room, one in Telecommunications, and one to the right side of the Human Resources door. Each bulletin board will be within staff lounges, break areas/or locker rooms and its location mutually agreed upon with management and a union representative. Materials posted will be relevant to Union business and presented professionally and in an appropriate manner.

Upon request, the President of the Union and/or his/her designee(s) (not to be more than two people for a total of one full time equivalent or less), from all bargaining units shall be granted an unpaid leave of absence up to the duration of this Agreement for Union business the logistics of which will be consistent with the operational needs of the Hospital. One month's notice must be given unless mutually agreed otherwise between the Hospital and the Union. The employee on leave pursuant to this provision shall continue to accrue seniority and all other benefits consistent with the LOA policy. Every effort will be made to return such individuals to the same position including given the option to bump the least senior person in said position or he/she may opt to take a comparable position.

Article 5 - Initially Left Blank

Article 6 - Union Security and Dues Deduction

- It shall be a condition of employment that every employee who is a member of the Union in good standing as of the effective date of this Agreement shall remain a member in good standing. Every employee covered by this Agreement employed by the Hospital who is not a member shall become a member of the Union on the thirtieth day following the beginning of the employee's employment or the effective date of this Agreement, whichever is later. Whenever any employee covered by this Agreement fails to become or remain a member of the Union in good standing during the term of this agreement the Union may request, in writing, that the employee's employment will be terminated. Upon receipt of such request, the employer will notify the employee of her / his obligation to become or remain in good standing within fourteen (14) days of said notice or be discharged by the Hospital.
- The Hospital shall notify the Union in writing of each newly hired employee and the Hospital shall notify the Union of any change in the status of an employee within 14 (fourteen) days of employment or change of status. The notification shall contain the name, complete address, telephone number, e-mail address, pay rate, title of position, the shift, the hours to be worked and the unit of the newly hired employee or employee who has had a change in status.

- For each employee who so authorized, the Hospital will deduct from the wages due such employee the rate of dues fixed by the Union for such employee not later than twenty-eight (28) days following said deduction, the Hospital shall remit the dues deducted for all employees who have so authorized to the Union along with a list of the names of the employees from whom dues have been deducted and the amount deducted. All such authorizations shall remain, in effect unless revoked by the employee within sixty (60) days written notice.
- It is understood that these requirements may be enforced only to the extent of requiring payment of an amount equal to dues and not actual Union membership.
- §5 All authorizations for dues deductions as set forth above shall be in the following form:

Dues Deduction Form

I, (Name of Employee), hereby authorize Kent Hospital to withhold from the salary due me the rate of dues fixed by the Union. I understand that this authorization may be revoked by me upon sixty (60) days written notice to the treasurer of the Union. In the absence of such notification, this authorization shall be deemed to be continuous until revoked by me or until termination of my employment. I hereby waive all right and claim for said monies as deducted and transmitted in accordance with the authorization and relieve the Hospital and all its officers from any liability thereof.

Union dues are not tax deductible as charitable contributions for Federal Income Tax Purposes. However, they may be tax deductible as ordinary and necessary business expenses.

Employee's Signature		
Date	Social Security Number_	
Denartment	-	

- The employer agrees to deduct contributions to the Kent Hospital United Nurses & Allied Professionals Committee on Political Education from the paychecks of any employee who authorizes in writing that such deduction be made. The Employer shall transmit such contributions to the Union in the same manner in which it transmits dues.
- §7 Employees who desire to cancel Kent Hospital UNAP COPE deductions shall notify the Union in writing. The Union shall transmit the cancellations promptly to the Employer.
- The Employer shall not be liable to the Union for the remittance or payment of any sum other than those constituting actual deductions made from the wages of employees. The Union shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability including, by way of example and not limitation, the cost of any judgment against the Employer and the reasonable value of any attorney fees incurred that may arise out of or by reason of action taken by the Employer or not taken by the Employer for the purpose of complying with any provision of this

Article. The Employer shall transmit promptly, and at least as often as it transmits contributions, all information required to report to the Federal Election Commission.

Article 7 and 8 - Initially Left Blank

Article 9 - Probationary Period

- All new and rehired employees are considered to be in probationary period during the first 180 days of employment. The 180-day probationary period will be extended by any leave(s) of absence totaling more than seven (7) days. No later than the 90th day of employment, probationary employees' progress and performance to date shall be discussed with them. Employment may be terminated at the discretion of the Hospital at any time during the probationary period without recourse to the grievance and arbitration procedure. Terminated probationary employees will be offered an exit interview in which the reasons for their termination will be explained.
- §2 All new employees shall receive a copy of the job description which covers the employee's position and shall be notified of the unit, hours and shift the employee is assigned. The new employee shall also be given a copy of the current collective bargaining agreement.
- §3 All new employees shall be given job orientation in accordance with Article 10.

Article 10 - Orientation

- §1 All newly hired employees or employees transferred to a new classification or a new unit which requires different skills shall be given an orientation to fulfill the requirements of the position.
- §2 Consistent with the respective policies, the responsibility for orientation shall be a collaborative effort between management, the Education Department, the new hire and where applicable, bargaining unit members whose duties include the responsibility to act as trainers. Training and preceptor assignments will be assigned at the discretion of the manager. Preceptor compensation shall be \$2.00 per hour for precepting a newly hired employee in the job classification of Anesthesia Assistant, Anesthesia Technician/Orderly, Cath Lab/IR Technician, Emergency Room Technician, Endoscopy Technician, LPN Inpatient Care, LPN ED, Mental Health Worker, Nursing Assistant, Operating Room Technician, Operating Room Technician, Certified, Pre-Admission Technician, and Secretary/Nursing Assistant (WRC).

Preceptor compensation shall be \$2.00 per hour for precepting a student in the job classifications of [Laboratory Technician] Medical Laboratory Technician, Medical Technologist including Cytotechnologist and Point Of Care Coordinator MT/MLT, [Diagnostic Imaging Technician] Radiologic Technologist, Radiologic Technologist KN, Radiological Tech-Mammography, Rad Tech-Mammographer KN, Rad. Technol,

Special Procedures, Senior Radiologic Technologist, Rad Tech-Mammography Level II, Rad Tech, Special Procedures Certified, Cat Scan Technologist, Cat Scan Tech Certified, Nuclear Medicine Technologist, Ultrasonographer, Ultrasonographer KN, CT/MRI Technologist, Ultrasonographer Certified, Ultrasonographer Certified KN, MRI Technologist/MR Safety Officer, [Respiratory Therapy Technician] Respiratory Therapist and [Surgical Tech] Surgical Technologist, Surgical Technologist Certified.

- §3 All mandatory orientation, mandatory training and mandatory in-service education shall be on paid time during regular work time when possible.
- During initial orientation of new employees, the employee shall be advised that their position is covered by this contract and of the identity of their unit representative.
- For those positions covered under the collective bargaining agreement, thirty (30) minutes of the new employee orientation shall be reserved for a union representative to discuss the union, the collective bargaining agreement and related matters. The union will be given advance notice of the planned orientation program conducted by the Education Department.

Article 11 - Seniority

- Hospital seniority means length of continuous employment in any capacity at the Hospital from the most recent date of hire. An employee shall acquire seniority after completing the probationary period and seniority will then be credited retroactive to date of hire. Time spent in per diem status shall not count toward Hospital seniority, but it shall not constitute a break in service. Further, if an employee changes from regular employment status to Per Diem status and then returns to regular employment status within one year, Hospital seniority shall be bridged. An employee may only exercise their right to change their position and maintain seniority in accordance with this section once every (3) years.
- Where employees have the exact same seniority date and are in conflict over a particular issue based on seniority, a random determination shall be made by a Hospital and a Union representative alternately selecting folded pieces of paper identifying each employee in lottery-type fashion. A coin toss shall be used when only two employees are involved.
- §3 Seniority will be lost by:
 - Resignation/Voluntary Quit
 - Discharge for just cause
 - Unauthorized Leave of Absence
 - Failure to report on time from an approved Leave of Absence without prior approval for

an extension.

- Employees who are absent from work and fail to call in to their supervisor for three (3) scheduled work days and who have not been granted a Leave of Absence during that three (3) day period or who do not present evidence satisfactory to the Hospital showing they were unable to report, or proof of their inability to report back due to genuine emergency beyond the control of the employee will be deemed to have quit with resultant loss of seniority.
- Failure to respond to recall from layoff pursuant to contractual layoff and recall requirements.
- Employment elsewhere during an unauthorized absence of work or during an approved leave of absence, unless approved in writing in advance by the senior Human Resources executive. Such approval will not be unreasonably denied.
- Kent North Diagnostic Imaging Job Classifications Only: Seniority earned on either
 campus is not transferable to the other campus for competitive purposes (examples are
 vacation selection, filling vacancies, layoff, etc.). However, when an employee transfers
 from one campus to the other, their seniority in the former campus will be frozen and
 reinstated if/when an employee returns to the former campus.

Article 12 - Categories of Employees and Payroll Types

Non-Exempt

§1 Full-time, Non-exempt

Employees paid on an hourly basis with regularly scheduled hours of eighty (80) per pay period. Employees whose schedule is three (3), twelve (12) hour shifts per week will be considered full time, as will employees with thirty (30) years or more of hospital seniority with regularly scheduled hours of seventy-two (72) or more hours per pay period provided she/he is in such a position as of June 1, 2016.

§2 Regular, Part-time Non-exempt

Employees paid on an hourly basis with regularly scheduled and worked hours less than eighty (80) per period. Regular part-time non-exempt employees with regularly scheduled hours of forty (40) per pay period or more are eligible for pro-rated benefits.

§3 Temporary, Full-time or Part-time

Employees hired for a specified period of time on a temporary basis not to exceed one hundred eighty (180) days.

§4 Per Diem

Works on an "as required" and "as available" basis upon notification by the Hospital or participates in an established Per Diem program.

§5 Full-time Exempt

Employees paid on a salaried basis with regularly scheduled hours of eighty (80) or more per biweekly pay period.

§6 Regular, Part-time, Exempt

Employees paid on a salaried basis with regularly scheduled hours less than eighty (80) hours per biweekly pay period. Regular part-time exempt employees with regularly scheduled hours of forty (40) per pay period or more are eligible for pro-rated benefits.

Article 13 - Grievance and Arbitration Procedure

- §1 A grievance is defined as any dispute between the Union or an employee and the Hospital concerning the interpretation, application or meaning of any of the provisions of this Agreement.
- §2 If a grievance as defined in the paragraph above arises, it shall be processed in the following manner:
- §3 STEP 1 Within seven (7) days (a day is defined for the purpose of this article as any weekday Monday Friday which is not a hospital observed holiday) of the occurrence or non-occurrence which gives rise to the grievance, the aggrieved Employee and/or the appropriate Union representative shall discuss the grievance with the immediate supervisor or management's designee. The grievance must be submitted in writing, state the specific provision that was violated, state the resolution sought and be signed by the employee or Union representative.
- If the employee's immediate supervisor does not satisfactorily resolve the dispute within five (5) days after it has been submitted to him/her, the same written grievance may, within the next five (5) days, be submitted to the relevant department Director or management's designee. A grievance presented in this Step 2 shall be answered by the Director in writing within five (5) days after its presentation. This Step 2 shall include a meeting between authorized Hospital representative, authorized Union representative, and the grievant if desired, to be held within the total of days provided in this Step 2. The grievant must be present at the meeting if it concerns a disciplinary action.

Occurrences which affect the bargaining unit as a whole or a policy/practice to numerous similarly situated employees may be

submitted in writing by a Union representative directly to Step 3, provided the grievance meets the timeliness requirement of Step 1.

- STEP 3 If the second step answer is not accepted, then the written grievance may be submitted by the Union to the Senior Operations or Patient Care Services Executive, his/her designee or the Senior Human Resources executive, or his/her designee to this third step of the grievance procedure within five (5) days following receipt of the second step answer. A meeting between an authorized Hospital representative, an authorized Union representative and the grievant if desired, shall be held within five (5) days after submission of a grievance into this third step. The grievant must be present at the meeting if it concerns a disciplinary action. The Hospital's answer to a grievance presented at this third step shall be given to the Union within five (5) days after the third step meeting.
- §6 Failure on the part of the Hospital to answer a grievance at any step shall not be deemed acquiescence to or acceptance of the grievance. In such cases, the grievance may be processed to the next step in the grievance procedure.
- §7 An authorized Union representative may investigate and resolve the grievance of an employee after notification to his/her supervisor. Such activity, including the submission and discussion of grievances in the grievance procedure, will be limited to reasonable times. If such activity is conducted during working hours, it will not interfere with work schedules or patient care.
- §8 If the grievance is not resolved pursuant to the foregoing procedure, the Union may submit the grievance within thirty (30) days after completion of Step 3 of the grievance procedure to the Labor Relations Connection for selection of an impartial arbitrator in accordance with the specified procedures. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding. All costs and fees of the arbitrator and the Labor Relations Connection shall be paid equally by the Hospital and the Union.
- §9 The Union's failure to submit a grievance for arbitration to the Labor Relations Connection within thirty (30) days after the completion of Step 3 of the grievance procedure shall be deemed as a final resolution of the grievance on the basis of the acceptance of the Hospital's Step 3 answer.
- The arbitrator shall have no power to alter or amend any of the provisions of this Agreement. The arbitrator shall not have authority to substitute his or her judgment for the Hospital's regarding clinical standards or patient care procedures.
- §11 All time limits in the grievance and arbitration procedure are of the essence and may be waived only in writing signed by authorized representatives of the Hospital and the Union.

Article 14 - Hours of Work, Schedules and Breaks

- The basic work week for full-time employees consists of forty (40) hours of work per week. The work week consists of the seven (7) consecutive days beginning with the morning shift that begins on Saturday at 11:00p.m. The basic schedule for full-time employees who work eight (8) hour shifts shall include two (2) days off in each week. The basic day for full-time employees shall consist of shifts of eight and one-half (8 ½), ten and one-half (10 ½) or twelve and one-half (12 ½) hours of work per day which include a one-half (½) hour unpaid meal break. The basic workday is the twenty-four hour (24) period beginning with the start of the morning shift. Biweekly pay day shall be on Thursday.
- §2 The basic eight-hour (8) work shifts are as follows:

Morning shifts shall begin at or after 11:00 p.m. and end at or before 8:00 a.m. Day shifts shall begin at or after 5:00 a.m. and end at or before 6:00 p.m.

Evening shifts shall begin at or after 3:00 p.m. and end at or before 1:00 a.m.

§3 The basic twelve-hour (12) shifts are as follows:

Morning shifts shall begin at or after 7:00 p.m. and end at or before 7:30 a.m. Day shifts shall begin at or after 7:00 a.m. and end at or before 7:30 p.m. (the 3:00 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. shift(s) shall also be considered the day shift.)

Evening shifts shall begin at or after 3:00 p.m. and end at or before 3:30 a.m.

- §4 Employees may be assigned within the basic shifts above.
- To the extent there are current employees working in shifts at variance from the basic shifts, those shifts may be continued. Shifts may be created based on business necessity and departmental needs with thirty 30 days' notice to the union. Newly created shifts at variance from basic shifts shall be filled (i) first by volunteers; or (ii) where no volunteers have been identified within thirty 30 days, the Hospital will fill said shifts based on reverse seniority.
- Employees scheduled to work between eight and one-half (8 ½) to twelve hours (12) shall receive one (1) fifteen (15) minute paid break; employees scheduled to work twelve hours (12) or more shall receive two (2) fifteen (15) minute paid breaks. Employees scheduled to work eight and one-half (8 ½) to twelve and one-half hours (12 ½) or more will be provided an unpaid meal period of one-half (½) hour which will be deducted after six and one-half (6 ½) hours of work. Employees are to be completely relieved of duty in order for the meal period to be unpaid and employees may leave their work areas. If

- there is a significant interruption in the meal period that results in the employee performing work, the employee will be provided a substitute meal period or paid in lieu thereof. If an employee's meal period is interrupted, they shall notify their manager.
- §7 A final work schedule shall be posted at least two (2) weeks in advance of the first day on which the schedule is to be effective. Specific work schedules for each department/ unit/section shall be prepared covering a period of at least four (4) weeks. Once a work schedule is posted in final form, no changes shall be made without the agreement of the effected employee(s) and of the Employer. The change will not be unreasonably denied.
- During the life of this Agreement it may be necessary for the employer to change an employees' regular shift or hours as they existed at the time this Agreement was executed. The Union and any employee affected by such changes will receive at least thirty (30) days' notice thereof. When changes are necessary, the employees will be impacted in the reverse order of seniority.
- Employees may be offered the opportunity to be called off in situations where there is a drop in the census and/or the acuity level in the hospital. The option of being called off will be offered to qualified employees on a rotating basis in order of hospital seniority by unit/department (EVS is by job classification not unit) with consideration of competencies. Employees with thirty (30) or more years of service will be the first to have the opportunity to be called off from their unit/department on weekends with consideration of competencies. Employees who have been offered the opportunity to be called off may have the option to take PTO or convenience time.
- Employees may be required to work weekends, but no employee will be required to work two (2) consecutive weekends unless it is as a result of a change in position for which the employee has requested, or he / she works or is hired into a position that requires consecutive weekend work or because one of the weekends falls on the employees scheduled holiday to work.
- Bargaining unit members working extra shifts may be called off by management provided at least one (1) hour notice is provided for the day shift and ninety (90) minutes' notice for evening and morning shifts.
- Where applicable, scheduling of extra hours will be posted in the electronic scheduling program. Bargaining unit members awarded shift(s) through the electronic bidding system within twenty-four (24) hours of said shift will be notified by phone at the telephone number on record in the electronic bidding system of said award as soon as practicable. When such notice is given within twenty-four (24) hours, the Employee may decline a shift without adverse effect. For those departments that do not use the electronic bidding system, the respective practices for scheduling extra hours may continue to be offered in accordance with practice.

Otherwise, employees interested in working extra hours shall so notify the employer by indicating the shifts they are available to work on the posted sign-up sheet not later than

- two weeks before the first day of the next posted work schedule. The employer shall assign extra shifts in accordance with hospital seniority and job classification provided the employee is capable and qualified to perform the work.
- §13 Kent North Diagnostic Imaging campus employees may bid for open shifts on the Kent Hospital campus after all open shifts have been offered to Kent Hospital Diagnostic Imaging campus employees. Kent Hospital Diagnostic Imaging campus employees may bid for open shifts on the Kent North campus after all open shifts have been offered to Kent North Diagnostic Imaging campus employees.

Article 15 - Shift Rotation

- The Hospital agrees to make every reasonable effort to avoid shift rotation. The Hospital also agrees to seek regular morning and evening shift employees to reduce shift rotation (the temporary assignment of employees from their regular shifts to another shift).
- The Hospital agrees to keep rotation to a minimum and to provide employees with as much advance notice of required rotation as is feasible. Employees will not be required to rotate more than fifty percent (50%) of their hours measured by a four (4) week time block. Employees will not be required to rotate to two (2) different shifts during the same work week.
- §3 When it becomes necessary to assign unscheduled rotation, the employer agrees to seek volunteers.
- §4 By mutual agreement with their supervisors, employees in the same unit may agree to switch rotation assignments.
- §5 Every effort will be made to avoid scheduling rotation which results in an employee rotating to the evening shift and having to return to work the next morning on the day shift.

Article 16 – Floating (not applicable to EVS job classifications)

- The term floating refers to the temporary reassignment on a daily basis of an employee (other than those in the float pool) from his or her regular department or unit to another department or unit on the same shift. The Hospital may require employee(s) to float to meet the needs of patient care when the department or unit to which they are floated is understaffed or when the department or unit from which they are floated is overstaffed.
- §2 Floated employee(s) may not be assigned duties or tasks for which they have not been oriented and trained.

§3 In the absence of a volunteer, the Hospital will make its best effort to distribute float assignments on a rotating basis starting with the junior employee by job classification by seniority.

Section 4 to Section 7 are applicable to Anesthesia Assistant, Anesthesia Technician/Orderly, Cath Lab/IR Technician, Emergency Room Technician, Endoscopy Technician, Mental Health Worker, Nursing Assistant, Operating Room Technician, Certified, Pre-Admission Technician, Secretary/Nursing Assistant (WRC).

- Regular staff shall not be floated before hospital floats, per diem staff or extra staff are floated first. Travelers shall be considered extra staff and therefore shall be floated before regular staff provided the traveler has the requisite skill set to perform the work where the float is needed.
- §5 The Hospital will make every effort to not backfill ("double float").
- Nursing Assistants and Emergency Room Technicians may be floated to any area requiring nursing assistant coverage. Nursing Assistants may be floated to the Emergency Room as long as patient care competencies are matched. Nursing Assistants floated to the Emergency Room will not be required to perform any clinical activity for which they have not been trained. They will be given an overview of the physical environment of the assigned work area and will be assigned a contact person to whom they can address inquiries.
 - Anesthesia Assistants, Endoscopy Technicians, Anesthesia Technician/Orderly, Operating Room Technicians may be floated to any area within Surgical Services providing that patient care competencies are matched.
- §7 Employees with 25 or more years of service will not be floated unless their core competencies are necessary or a failure to float would result in a violation of the mandatory overtime law. (only applicable to job titles listed above.)
- §8 Kent North Diagnostic Imaging campus employees will not be required to float to Kent Hospital campus and vice versa.

Article 17 - Annual Evaluations, Personnel Files, Discipline and Termination

- All permanent records of an employee's performance evaluations and/or disciplinary actions shall be kept in one central personnel file which shall be available in the office of Human Resources during normal business hours for inspection by individual employees.
- §2 All materials placed in an employee's personnel file shall be deemed to be confidential and no such material shall be released to persons outside the Hospital without prior

- written authorization of the employee to whom the material pertains except in response to duly authorized government requests or legal process.
- §3 Upon request of the employee, letters of recommendation shall be made available to the employee prior to their submission to a prospective employer. The employee at his/her option may elect not to have a letter of recommendation forwarded to a prospective employer.
- No disciplinary material shall be placed in an employee's personnel file unless the employee is aware of the material. The employee's knowledge of any disciplinary material shall be signified by initialing the material which shall not constitute agreement with the material, but only knowledge of its existence, or by a note indicating the employee's refusal to initial. The Hospital will deem routine verbal warnings stale after nine (9) months and routine written warnings stale after fifteen (15) months. Employees may request the removal of routine warnings after twenty-four (24) months of said occurrence provided there is no ongoing corrective action.
- The parties agree that the principle of progressive discipline should be applied in case of disciplinary infractions. In this context, progressive discipline will involve a verbal warning (documented), a written warning, a suspension, and/or discharge. Management may skip a step of the disciplinary process depending on the severity of the infraction. Employees who have successfully completed the probationary period shall be considered regular employees and shall not be disciplined, suspended, reduced in rank, discharged or terminated except for just cause. In the event that an employee is discharged or terminated, the employee and the Union shall be notified in writing and shall be provided with the reason(s) for said termination. The parties agree that the concepts of Just Culture (as generally described in the Staff_Accountability / Just Culture policy dated June 20, 2011) will be implemented by the Hospital. Nothing herein shall be construed to remove the just cause standard set forth herein. Further, the community service portion of the Just Culture policy will be optional (i.e., an employee may decline to do paid community service and instead take an unpaid suspension).
- Each employee shall be evaluated annually. The employee will be given the opportunity to meet with the evaluating supervisor to discuss her/his performance/conduct. The employee will be given a copy of the official evaluation document. An employee who disagrees with the contents of the official evaluation document may submit a written statement which will be filed with the official evaluation document. The Employer shall have the right to determine the content and format of performance evaluations. The categories evaluated will take into account the duties and responsibilities included in the employee's job description. Except for disciplinary actions that are a consequence of evaluations, all matters relating to the employee evaluations shall not be subject to grievance and arbitration procedures in the Agreement.
- Whenever an Employee is asked to meet with a supervisor or any other representative of the administration for the purpose of investigating circumstances which the Employer

- believes might lead to the Employee being disciplined; the Employee shall be advised to obtain representation by a Union representative.
- §8 If an Employee is suspended, they will not be able to bid on extra shift(s) for the next two (2) pay periods following the suspension.

Article 18 - Employment, Posting and Transfer Practices

- Employees who have served a total of six (6) months of continuous service in their current position/or department and not subject to repeated written finalized discipline (not currently in the grievance procedure) within the last twelve (12) months will be considered for posted vacancies. The six (6) month time frame will be waived if the employee is applying for a position in the same department. These provisions may be waived by the mutual agreement of the parties to this agreement. If an employee bids for and is awarded more than one vacancy in a six (6) month period, he/she will not move to the new position until the position he/she is leaving is filled.
- §2 Before a position of less than forty (40) hours per pay period is posted, the hours will be offered (posted on the unit/department bulletin board for one (1) work week) in whole or in part to employees in the same unit/department_same shift (for Laboratory job classifications added into the bargaining unit by certification dated 7/23/2019, add: unless such posting would bring the department/unit below core staff levels). For positions greater than forty (40) hours per pay period the hours may be offered in whole or in part to employees in the same unit/department/shift at the discretion of the manager. If the Employer elects to post the hours in full and in part(s) simultaneously, the Employee with the greatest seniority will be awarded the position. Simultaneously with posting on the unit/department bulletin board all full-time, regular part-time and per diem bargaining unit vacancies will be posted on the Hospital bulletin board and Hospital designated portal, on the department where the vacancy exists and the Hospital website for a period of ten (10) days. Employees in the same unit/department will be given preference in hiring for vacant positions over other Hospital employees provided they bid on the position within seven (7) days from the posting. A copy of all posted vacancies shall be sent to the President of the Union. Vacancies will be posted hospital-wide for a minimum of ten (10) calendar days. Vacancies will be posted promptly, no later than one (1) week after the Hospital makes a decision to fill a vacancy. Internal applicants will be considered from those who apply during the initial ten (10) day posting period
- §3 The posting shall identify the job classification, the shift, the hours to be worked, the qualifications, requirements, and the department. Applicants, upon request, will be provided a copy of the job description.
- At the close of the posting period, the position will first be offered to the most senior bargaining unit member within the same job classification in the same unit/department who has applied. For vacancies in the environmental services department and food and nutrition department (except for Cook II), the position(s) will be offered to the most

senior bargaining unit member in the department who has applied. Then, the Employer shall review all applications and shall interview all qualified applicants. Appointment to the vacant position shall be based upon qualifications. When qualifications are relatively equal in terms of education, training and experience, hospital seniority shall be the determining factor in filling vacancies. Applicants for a posted position within their current unit/department_will be presumed qualified for that position. The hospital shall not select an employee from outside the bargaining unit to fill a bargaining unit vacancy unless no qualified bargaining unit members apply. Applicants for posted positions who are not selected shall be so notified.

For the Food & Nutrition Department, Food Service Associate shall be defined as:

- (1) <u>Food Service Associate</u>, <u>Patient Services</u> to include the assignments of Host/Hostess; Assembler; Cleaning Aide, Food Services.
- (2) <u>Food Service Associate, Retail</u> to include the assignments of Dining Room Aide; Floater, Food Services; Barista.
- (3) <u>Food Service Associate</u>, <u>Production</u> to include the assignment of Cold Production Aide.

Additional job classifications in the Food and Nutrition Services are:

- (4) Lead Barista; (5) Cook I; (6) Cook II; (7) Supply Receiving Clerk, Food Services; and (8) Room Service Operator.
- §4a If a Medical Lab Technician becomes qualified to be re-classified as a Medical Technologist (obtains BS degree and Medical Technologist ASCP certification), he/she shall be re-classified into a Medical Technologist position (in the same standard hours and same shift) without the Medical Technologist position being posted.
- Whenever a position is posted and filled pursuant to this Article, it shall be filled no later than thirty (30) days from the Hospital's selection of the successful applicant.
- An employee who accepts a posted position may return to their previous position within thirty (30) days provided that position has remained vacant.
- All temporary vacancies and positions shall be identified as such at the time of posting. The duration of a temporary position shall be limited to one hundred eighty (180) days. Employees who fill a temporary position shall return to the position they left upon termination of the temporary position provided they are a per diem, or their position remains vacant. If a regular employees' position is no longer vacant, the employee may return to an equivalent position.
- Relatives of the department heads, manager, supervisors, or any person acting as supervisors shall not be employed under the direct supervision of such managerial personnel or in positions for which a relative has responsibility for approving performance, promotion, salary, or disciplinary actions. This provision will not be applicable when the department head, manager, or supervisor is transferred or hired into

the position of supervising a relative as a result of a decision made by the Hospital. A relative for the purpose of this Article is defined as: spouse, common-law spouse, same-sex domestic partner, parent, sibling, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, stepparent, stepchild, stepsibling, or persons who are permanent members of his/her household.

- In the event that the Hospital determines that a newly transferred employee is unable to satisfactorily perform the duties of her/his position, such employee may be returned to her/his previous position if available, or if the previous position has been filled, to an equivalent vacant position within ninety (90) days of the date she/he transferred into the new position, provided that:
 - the employee was notified in writing after no more than sixty (60) days in the position as to any performance deficiencies and required corrective action,
 - the employee's return to her/his former position shall not displace any other employee.
 - the employee's return to an equivalent vacant position shall not supersede the bidding rights of any other employee.
 - For purposes of this section an equivalent position shall include the same classification, pay, benefits, shift and the same or equivalent work schedule.
- §10 Kent North Diagnostic Imaging campus employees will be offered vacancies on the Kent North campus before Kent Hospital Diagnostic Imaging campus employees and vice versa.

Article 19 – Layoffs and Recalls

- §1 Hospital seniority, as defined in Article 11, shall apply to the selection of employees for layoffs and recall there from.
- When it becomes necessary to lay off employees within the bargaining unit, the Union shall be notified at least seven (7) calendar days in advance.
- §3 In the event of layoff, employees in the affected job classification shall be laid off in the following order:

First, all temporary employees

Second, all voluntary employees in order of hospital seniority

Third, all probationary employees by inverse order of hiring

Fourth, regular full and part-time employees in order of inverse seniority

- When the employer determines the positions affected, it will notify the employees holding positions subject to layoff and advise them of any vacant positions. An employee who is subject to layoff shall have preference for posted bargaining unit vacancies. If an employee does not elect to take a vacancy in the same job classification with the same hours on the same shift, he / she shall not have bumping rights.
- §5a If the employee does not take a vacancy and has bumping rights, the affected employee may exercise bumping rights and must bump the most junior employee on his/her shift in his/her classification who has the same regularly scheduled hours as the laid off employee, provided he/she is senior to the employee bumped. [This section 5 does not apply to engineering].
- §5b If the laid off employee cannot exercise bumping rights in section 5a in his/her job classification, the affected employee may exercise bumping rights and must bump the most junior employee on his/her shift in his/her seniority group who has the same regularly scheduled hours as the laid off employee, provided he/she is senior to the employee bumped. [This section 5 does not apply to engineering].
- §6a If there is no such junior person, the laid off employee may bump: (a) the most junior employee on his/her shift in his/her classification regardless of hours, or (b) bump the most junior employee in his/her department/unit or job classification on either of the other two (2) shifts who has the same scheduled hours as the laid off employee, provided he/she is senior to the employee bumped. The employee must choose (a) or (b) within forty-eight (48) hours. [This section 6 does not apply to engineering].
- If the laid off employee cannot exercise bumping rights in section 6a in his/her job classification, the laid off employee may bump: (a) the most junior employee on his/her shift in his/her seniority group regardless of hours, or (b) bump the most junior employee in his/her department/unit or seniority group on either of the other two (2) shifts who has the same scheduled hours as the laid off employee, provided he/she is senior to the employee bumped. The employee must choose (a) or (b) within forty-eight (48) hours. [This section 6 does not apply to engineering].
- §7a If the laid off employee cannot exercise bumping rights under the above, he/she must bump the most junior in his/her classification on the other two (2) shifts regardless of scheduled hours, provided he/she is senior to the employee bumped. [This section 7 does not apply to engineering].
- §7b If the laid off employee cannot exercise bumping rights in section 7a in his/her job classification, he/she may bump the most junior in his/her seniority group on the other two (2) shifts regardless of scheduled hours, provided he/she is senior to the employee bumped. [This section 7 does not apply to engineering].

Clerical	Technical	Service & Skilled Maintenance
Group 1C	Group 1T	Group 1S*
OPIU Oncology Services Secretary	Respiratory Therapist	Food Service Associate
Unit Secretary 07	1	SuppReceivingClerkFoodServices
Unit Secretary Emer. Dept. 07	Group 2T	Lead Barista
Secretary Medical Clerk	Respiratory Therapist, HME	Load Dallista
Secretary, Sleep Center	Group 3T	Group 2S
Surgical Services Secretary	Radiologic Technologist	Cook I
Surgical Services Secretary	Senior Radiologic Technologist	Cyana 26
· Crons 2C*	Group 4T	Group 3S Cook II
Group 2C*	Radiol Technol, Spec Procedure	COOK II
Customer Service Rep, HME Marketing Representative, HME	Rad Tech, Spec Procedures Cert	Group 4S
	1 · · ·	Room Service Operator
Lead Customer Service Rep	Group 5T	Telephone Operator
G 2C	Cardiovascular Technician	Comme SC**
Group 3C	Group 6T***	Group 5S**
Insurance Coordinator, HME	Lead Cardiac Testing Tech II*	General Maintenance II
Financial Coor Infusion Unit	Cardiac Stress Testing Technician	General Maintenance III
Financial Counselor	Group 7T****	Carpenter
G 4Gt	Echo Tech/Vascular Tech	Groundskeeper
Group 4C*	Ĭ	Painter
Patient Access Associate	Group 8T***	Mechanic
Lead, Patient Access Services	Lead Echo Tech Registered	Gen. Maint. III Mechanical
	Group 9T******	Boiler Room Operator
G 76	Echocardiographer Registered	HVAC Mechanic
Group 5C	Echocardiographer, Non-Registered	Journeyman Electrician
Document Coordinator	Group 10T	Journeyman Plumber
Commercial (C) (topological)	EKG Technician II	Lead Electrician
Group 6C (transcription)		Lead Boiler Room Operator
Medical Secretary, Cardiac Cath	Group 11T*	Lead Groundskeeper
Lab	Polysomnographic Technician	Lead HVAC Mechanic
Secretary, Technical Services	Polysomnographic Technician, Non	Group 6S
(Resp)	Certified	Equipment Technician, Resp Therapy
Secretary, Vascular Lab	Lead Polysomnographic Tech	HME Store Clerk
C 7C*	Group 12T	G 76
Group 7C*	Phlebotomist	Group 7S
Radiology Aide	Phlebotomist, Send Out	Driver/Tech II, HME
Lead, Radiology Aide	Group 13T	Group 8S*****
Sleep Lab Aide	Hyperbaric CHT/Safety Coordinator	Certified Sterilization Technician
Group 8C******	Group 14T	Sterilization Technician 06
Medical Transcriptionist, Lab	Intentionally Left Blank	Lead Instrumentation Specialist
ivicultat Hanstiphonist, Lau	,	Group 9S
Group 9C	Group 15T	Surgical Inventory Case Specialist
Staffing Coordinator	Cat Scan Tech	Surgical Inventory Coordinator/Lead
Statining Coordinator	CT Tech (Certified)	
Group 10C	CT/MRI Technologist	Group 10S
	Group 16T	Anesthesia Assistant
Cardiology Coordinator, Tech Services	MRI Tech	
BEL AICES	CT/MRI Technologist	Group 11S*
	MRI	Hospitality Associate
	Technologist/MRSO*********	Transport Aide
	Group 17T	Linen Aide
	Rad Tech-Mammographer	Cleaning Aide 1
	Rad Tech- Mammographer Level II	Cleaning Aide II

Group 18T Lead Environmental Services Aide Ultrasound Tech (sonographer) Ultrasound Tech (certified) Group 19T Nuclear Medicine Tech Group 20T****** EEG Technologist Group 21T Medical Laboratory Technician Group 22T Medical Technologist ******* Group 23T Cytotechnologist Group 24T Point of Care Coord/Tech ******** Group 25T Satellite Lab Coordinator/Technologist (MT)/Technician (MLT)******** Group 26 T Nursing Assistant Secretary/Nursing Assistant (WRC) Emergency Room Technician Pre-Admission Technician Lead Preadmission Technician Group 27T Surgical Technologist Surgical Technologist, Certified Group 28T Anesthesia Technician/Orderly Group 29T Endoscopy Technician Group 30T Cath Lab/IR Technician Group 31T Mental Health Worker Group 32T LPN, ED LPN, Inpatient Care Group 33T Rad Tech -Mammographer KN Group 34T Radiologic Technologist KN Group 35T Ultrasonographer KN

Group 36T Ultrasonographer Certified KN	

^{*}Where there is a lead in a Bumping Group, leads can bump others in the Bumping Group, but may not be bumped by others.

he/she has the present skill and license (if required) to perform competently and efficiently the work of the junior employee.

```
***6T may bump 10T.
```

****8T may bump 9T.

*****7T may bump 9T.

******Certified Sterilization Technician and Lead Instrumentation Specialist may bump Endoscopy Assistant and Sterilization Technician

******20T may bump 10T

******Echocardiographer, Registered may bump Echocardiographer, Non-Registered but not vice versa.

********8C may bump 1C

********22T may bump 21T

********24T may bump 21T or 22T depending on current certification (MLT or MT)

********25T may bump 21T or 22T depending on current certification (MLT or MT)

*********MRI Technologist/MRSO can bump MRI Tech but not vice versa.

- An employee with most recent experience (most recent experience defined as within the last two (2) years) in another job classification inside or outside the hospital including regular employment or floating, may exercise bumping rights as set forth above in the bargaining unit job classification within which the employee has most recent experience. A CNA may exercise bumping rights as set forth above in the Emergency Department Technician job classification and an Emergency Department Technician may exercise bumping rights set forth above in the C.N.A. job classification.
- §9 In the event of multiple layoffs, when more than one (1) employee in the same job classification and shift are laid off, choices of bumping will be exercised by seniority. The most senior of the laid off employees will choose first which of the junior employees among those subject to bumping he/she will bump. Then the next most senior laid off employee will choose.
- Prior to the layoff of any bargaining unit employee, employees in the area to be impacted by a layoff will be notified in an effort to seek volunteers for layoff or reduction in hours. In response to this notification, or at any point in the procedure under this Article, the Hospital and employee may mutually agree that the employee be laid off or have their hours reduced.

For Medical Laboratory Technicians and Technologists, notwithstanding anything set forth above to the contrary, he/she must have necessary competencies to perform in a different specialty position (or be able to obtain the competencies within thirty (30) days)

^{**}Engineering Department: A laid off employee may use his or her seniority to bump into any position held by a junior employee provided

in order to bump into a different specialty position. The determination of said competencies or the ability to obtain them will be made by the manager prior to the bumping process.

Rights of Employees Bumped

- 811 Bumped employees will have the same bumping rights as the laid off employee.
- Employees who have been laid off shall be recalled (re-employed) within their job classifications and Bumping Group in the inverse order of their layoff.
- Employees will be notified of recall from layoff by certified mail and shall have ten (10) days from the date of the postmark to respond. Employees in recall status will be notified of vacancies within their job classification and bumping groups by certified mail and may bid on same in accordance to Article 18.
- Employees who have been laid off shall continue to receive the benefits of Article 38 for a period of ninety (90) days following the effective date of the layoff. Thereafter, employees who are laid off may continue to participate in the medical-hospital plan in accordance with COBRA.
- Employees who have been laid off shall remain on the recall list for a period equal to the employee's continuous length of service at the time of layoff or twelve (12) months, whichever is shorter.
- Employees on layoff shall not be denied further consideration for recall (re-employment) by declining to accept re-employment on a different shift or with different weekly hours than the position from which they were laid off.
- §17 Job Classifications are as set forth in the recognition clause.

Articles 20, 21, 22, and 23 Intentionally Left Blank

Article 24 - Paid Leaves of Absence

Full-time and part-time employees with regularly scheduled hours of twenty (20) or more per week are eligible for the following paid leaves of absence during which benefits and insurance coverage are retained and PTO is accrued.

Bereavement/Funeral Leave

For the death of an immediate family member, defined as spouse, common-law spouse, domestic partner, mother, father, sister, brother, child, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparent, grandchild, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, stepmother, stepfather, stepchild, stepbrother and stepsister; up to three (3) consecutive scheduled workdays leave with pay

- will be granted. All bereavement paid time will occur within seven (7) calendar days of the death. Scheduled workdays for which paid bereavement leave is provided do not include days voluntarily scheduled by an employee through the electronic bidding system, if applicable.
- §3 In the case of an extended family member, defined as sister-in-law and brother-in-law, a paid day off may be granted within seven (7) days of when the funeral is held on a regularly scheduled workday.
- Payment for such leave will be at the employee's regular straight-time rate of pay, plus weekend differential and/or shift differential for employees regularly assigned to the evening or night shift, up to the employee's scheduled hours for each day of absence.
- §5 If an employee is on vacation, they shall be eligible to convert vacation days to bereavement days.
- §6 If there are extenuating circumstances delaying the burial/funeral i.e., autopsy, transport of body from another country etc., the employee shall be granted a paid funeral day at such time that burial occurs. The paid funeral day is not in addition to the three (3) paid bereavement days in paragraph 2.

Military Training Leave

- Employees serving as members of the National Guard or military reserves will be granted military training leave of up to two (2) weeks annually in addition to monthly weekend commitment and have their job rights protected consistent with current legal requirements. Additional time requested off shall be reviewed and not unreasonably denied.
- §8 Employees are required to notify their supervisor as soon as possible after receiving notice of the dates of required military service.
- Payment for two (2) weeks annual leave will be the difference between the employee's regular straight-time weekly earnings, plus shift differentials for employees regularly assigned to the evening or night shift, and any payments by the military.

Military Leaves of Absence

- §10 Active Duty employees who are called to active military duty will be placed on leave of absence status. Health insurance benefits will continue for the period of active duty at the same employee contribution rate made while actively at work.
- §11 A Military Leave of Absence does not constitute a break in service with respect to benefit accrual and other seniority-based determinations. Active-duty military personnel shall be restored to their previous position upon discharge from the military.

§12 Employees who are called to active military duty are drafted to perform compulsory military service or who volunteer for military service will be placed on leave of absence status. The Hospital agrees to continue to apply all of the elements of the Military Leave Policy in effect on the date that this Agreement is effectuated.

Jury Duty and Related Absences

- Employees are required to notify their supervisor as soon as possible after receiving notice to appear for jury duty and for submitting records from the court for the day(s) spent on jury duty. Upon completion of jury duty, the employee will be returned to their position with no loss of benefits or seniority.
- §14 Payment for such leave will be at the employee's regular straight-time rate of pay, plus shift differentials for employees regularly assigned to the evening or night shift, up to the employee's scheduled hours for each day of absence, offset by any fees paid or expenses reimbursed by the court. Scheduled workdays for which paid jury duty leave is provided do not include days voluntarily scheduled by an employee through the electronic bidding system.
- When, on behalf of the Hospital, an employee is required by a government agency to appear in court, attends the taking of depositions or appears at external fact-finding or investigatory hearings, the time will be considered hours worked and will be paid as such. For such appearances, reasonable expenses related to mileage, parking and/or meals will also be reimbursed when accompanied by receipts or other records of payment per hospital travel and expense policy.
- Employees may request time off from work for appearances in court for other reasons or for external proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary. When approved, such absences will be considered unpaid time off, and employees may use accrued PTO to cover up to the employee's scheduled hours for each day of absence. Such approval will be granted when an employee is required by subpoena to appear in court or when an employee is a party to a lawsuit and is required to appear at a deposition or in court.
- §17 For morning shift employees eligible for leave under this section who are scheduled to work the night immediately preceding a day of jury duty or court appearance, the day of the jury duty shall be the night before the day of jury duty or hospital required court appearance.
- §18 If an employee serves on jury duty for a full week, i.e. Monday through Friday, the employee will not be required to work the next Saturday and/or Sunday. If the employee had been scheduled to work the Saturday and/or Sunday, the employee will receive the same pay they would have received had they worked. If an employee serves on jury duty for two full weeks, he or she will not be required to work the intervening weekend.

Article 25 - Unpaid Leaves of Absence Federal and Rhode Island Medical and Family Leaves of Absence

The Parties recognize that a leave of absence is intended to provide employees with job protection and economic support in a time of need. It is not intended to be additional personal time or an opportunity to avoid investigatory interviews or discipline. The Parties further agree that if someone is on leave that does not need to be, it harms fellow employees and the Hospital. As such the Parties will continue to cooperate to try and ensure the appropriate utilization and management of leave time. Finally, it is incumbent upon employees to complete the proper paperwork and provide the Hospital with necessary leave information.

- The Hospital will grant eligible employees an unpaid leave of absence for leaves under the Federal and Rhode Island Family and Medical Leave Acts. All other leaves of absence shall be granted in accordance with this Article or at the discretion of the Hospital.
- A Leave of Absence provides an employee three (3) separate benefits: 1. Seniority retention, 2. Reinstatement rights, and 3. Health insurance continuation. The LEAVE TABLE below indicates an employee's eligibility for each of these benefits based upon the employee's employment history. These benefit periods are in the aggregate. For example, under FMLA an employee would not be able to take thirteen (13) weeks of maternity leave with reinstatement rights and additional weeks of disability leave with reinstatement rights in the same twelve (12) month period. The Hospital will measure FMLA entitlements on a rolling (twelve) (12) month basis.

Service Time	Less Than 1 Year	More Than 1 Year But Not FMLA Eligible	More Than 1 Year and FMLA Eligible
1.Length of time seniority retention/length of leave	6 weeks	13 weeks	1-4 Years: 13 weeks 5-9 Years: 6 months 10 or more: see par. 5
2.Minimum* length of reinstatement rights	6 weeks	6 weeks	13 weeks
3. Length of time hospital will pay its share of health insurance.	To end of month or during any period of TCI Leave if longer	13 weeks (if benefit status)	13 weeks plus accrued PTO and EIB Banks (if benefit status)

^{*}Longer periods may be granted based upon ability to replace incumbent and departmental staffing needs.

- The Hospital will pay its share of the premiums for the employee's health insurance for a period of time as indicated on the LEAVE TABLE; provided that the employee continues to pay his or her share of those premiums.
 - The Hospital reserves the right to deduct an employee's share of health insurance premiums from any pay that may be due the employee during or at the end of the leave. If an employee fails to pay his or her share during the leave within thirty (30) days of the due date, the Hospital can cancel the employee's insurance after fifteen (15) days' notice.
- If an employee fails to return to work at the end of his or her leave, the employee is liable to the Hospital for any health insurance premiums paid by it on employee's behalf while on leave unless the failure to return is due to the continuation, recurrence or onset of a "serious health condition" or to other circumstances beyond the employee's control. The Hospital may deduct amounts owed to it from any final paycheck and/or pursue other legal remedies to collect these amounts. If the employee has cashed out his or her health insurance benefit, the cash out entitlement while on leave will be pro-rated based on what the Leave Table indicates the employee's entitlement to paid health insurance would have been had the employee not cashed out. Flex credits for benefits will continue to be paid to the employee while on leave.
- Employees that have been employed five (5) or more years have seniority rights (see #1 §5 on Leave Table) which extend beyond the period of reinstatement entitlement. This means that if an employee wants to return after his or her reinstatement period has ended (6 or 13 weeks), but before the end of their seniority retention period (13 weeks to 6 months depending on seniority), the Hospital will attempt to place the employee in an available position for which he or she is well qualified. If no positions for which the employee is well qualified are available, the employee will be terminated at the end of the seniority retention period. However, notwithstanding anything to the contrary above, an employee with ten (10) years or more of Hospital Seniority (regardless of FMLA eligibility) who returns from an approved leave of absence within fourteen (14) through twenty-six (26) weeks from when the leave began will be offered an equivalent position or their former position if the position is still vacant. Employees with twenty (20) or more years of Hospital Seniority who are regularly scheduled to work forty-eight (48) hours per pay period (regardless of FMLA eligibility) who return from an approved leave within thirteen (13) weeks will be offered their former position. If they return within twenty-six (26) weeks they will be offered an equivalent position. An employee with twenty-five (25) years or more of Hospital Seniority (regardless of FMLA eligibility) who returns from an approved leave of absence within fifty-two (52) weeks from when the leave began will be offered a position(s) on the same shift, for the same hours, pay and benefits as her/his prior position where the Hospital has need or can best utilize the employee that is of the same professional stature. Such employee will have the right of first refusal if her/his prior position becomes vacant.

If an employee returns to work either during the period of reinstatement eligibility or seniority retention, reinstatement will include retention of full seniority as well as other benefits accrued at the time the leave began. Failure to return to work at the end of a leave will result in termination of employment.

When an employee is out on leave that has the right under §5 to return to her / his former position or an equivalent position, and her / his usual scheduled hours temporarily have been filled through the scheduling of per diem employees and/or the use of a temporary posting, upon the return of the employee from leave the Hospital may either: (i) return the employee to her / his former position or an equivalent position; or (ii) temporarily place the employee in a position for which she / he is qualified that is on same shift, same number of hours and in the same job classification for up to 45 days, and then return to her/his prior position or an equivalent position.

- §6 PTO and EIB must be used subject to the provisions of the PTO policy. EIB may only be used if the leave is for an employee's own serious health condition. Employees may use twenty-four (24) hours (up to three (3) days) per year from their EIB bank (after one week of PTO usage) for the illness of a dependent. Employees will be allowed to maintain the equivalent of one pay period of scheduled hours in their PTO bank if requested. An employee who returns from a leave of absence of more than thirteen (13) weeks may not take a full week vacation within sixty (60) days of returning from such leave, unless the vacation was approved.
- §7 Employees must request a leave of absence for any period of absence that exceeds one (1) calendar week (per employee regular schedule). The request should be made to the employee's immediate supervisor and the management personnel, or the Leave of Absence Company designated by the Hospital.

If the need for a leave is foreseeable, the employee must make the request at least thirty (30) days before the leave is to begin. If thirty (30) days' notice is not possible, the employee must make the request as soon as practicable. Prior to approval of any leave for an employee's own serious health or for the serious health condition of a family member, the employee must submit a medical certification form signed by a health care provider. This certification must be submitted as soon as possible. A delay of more than fifteen (15) days may result in denial of a leave. The Hospital retains the right, at its expense, to require certification from a healthcare provider of its own choice, and in the event of a disagreement, to refer the matter to a third provider for a final resolution.

If an Employee is going on leave for a planned reason (such as a scheduled medical procedure) she/he will communicate with her/his supervisor (with a union representative if she/he so desires) in an effort to see if the leave can be scheduled in a manner that accommodates the needs of the Employee and mitigates its impact on the employee's department.

A completed Healthcare Provider Certification Form must be returned to the management personnel, or the Leave of Absence Company designated by the Hospital. Workers' compensation leaves are managed through Occupational Health. The employee will receive notification from the Hospital designee of approval or denial of leave status via e-mail and/or US mail.

Leaves related to serious health conditions will not be approved for periods longer than that certified by the health care provider(s). In the event that a definite return date cannot be specified, the leave will be approved only for a period ending one (1) calendar week after the employee's next scheduled appointment with the provider. If the approved leave exceeds thirty (30) days, the employee must provide a medical recertification of the continued need for the leave every thirty (30) days (unless the outstanding medical certification provides that the employee will be out for a specified period longer than thirty (30) days.

Requests for extensions of leaves should be made directly to the employee's immediate supervisor and the Hospital designee and must be made within one (1) or two (2) workdays after the need for the extension is known, and in any event prior to expiration of the employee's approved leave. Where warranted by exceptional circumstances, consideration will be given to extending benefits beyond those delineated on a case-by-case basis.

- §9 If the leave is due to the employee's own serious health condition and is one (1) week or longer, the employee will also be required to furnish the Hospital with medical certification of the employee's fitness to return to work and to clear through Occupational Health prior to returning to work.
- §10 Employees are not permitted to attend any department meetings, classes and/or training sessions provided through the Hospital while on an active leave of absence from the Hospital. Notwithstanding the above, employees on approved leaves of absences may, with approval from Human Resources, attend classes and training programs provided by the Hospital, but under no circumstances will the employee be paid for such time.
- \$11 Leaves of absences for other reasons, such as education at an accredited institution, may be granted at the discretion of the Hospital for up to ninety (90) days (or in the case of an educational leave, for one (1) semester). For employees covered by the certifications dated 1/24/14, 10/16/14, 8/4/16 and job classifications added there to by agreement (formally known as the maroon contract and EVS contract), add: Such leaves will not be unreasonably denied.) Employees returning from such approved leaves will be entitled to return to an equivalent open position.

Article 26 - Light Duty and Alternative Assignment

§1 Unless required by law, medical light duty is utilized for Worker's Compensation cases only.

Employees with a work-related injury/disability may need an interim temporary assignment in another position within the Hospital. The Hospital will identify a suitable temporary assignment and evaluate the possibility of placing the disabled employee in the temporary assignment. At the end of the temporary assignment or whenever the employee is able to return to his/her original position (whichever is sooner), the employee will be transferred back to Worker's Compensation status or to regular employment status in his/her original department and position title.

Article 27 – Health and Safety

- The Hospital shall continue to maintain a safe and healthy workplace.
- The Hospital shall provide and maintain necessary equipment in proper working order and supplies required for employees to safely perform their duties and responsibilities.
- The Hospital shall observe all applicable health and safety laws and regulations and will take all reasonable steps necessary to ensure employee health and safety.
- The Hospital will provide all governmentally required tests and/or immunizations for exposure and contact with infectious diseases and hazards in the workplace at no cost to employees.
- The Hospital agrees to provide on-campus security and continue its practice of providing a security escort for employees to and from employee parking areas upon request. In addition, a Union member (appointed by the Local President) shall serve on the Hospital's Environment of Care Committee/Safety Committee. Note: one (1) union member from the combined bargaining units.
- For any employee who suffers a work-related injury or illness, the use and treatment provided at the Emergency Department, or any other hospital facility will be provided at no charge.
- §7 The Hospital and the Union agree to cooperate toward the prompt disposition of employee on-the-job injury claims.
- All examinations when required by the Hospital and performed under its direction shall be paid for by the Hospital. Employees shall be paid for all time required to take all such examinations, at their straight time hourly rate of pay. Unless required by law, this pay provision shall not apply when employees are on an unpaid leave of absence (except that employees shall be paid for the time necessary to undergo an examination that is a condition precedent for the return to work).

Article 28 - Holidays

§1 The Hospital observes the following holidays: (*Major Holidays)

New Year's Day*

Martin Luther King Day

Memorial Day

Juneteenth

Victory Day

Labor Day

Labor Day

Columbus Day

Christmas Day*

Christmas Day*

Since there are 11 holidays (which might create an imbalance in year-to-year holiday rotation), employees may be required to work Martin Luther King Day and Memorial Day in a calendar year to cycle the holidays in the next year.

- §2 In units or departments that do not operate on weekends, holidays occurring on Saturdays normally will be observed on the preceding Friday and holidays occurring on Sundays normally will be observed on the following Monday.
- §3 Employees will be assigned to work no more frequently than every other holiday. (this does not apply to employees hired into positions that require additional weekend/holiday hours.) An employee who works on a holiday may take a mutually agreed upon regular day off using PTO within thirty (30) days after working the holiday.

§4 Intentionally Left Blank

- §5 Holiday schedules shall be determined no later than November 1st for the next calendar year. Holiday schedule rotation will be maintained unless it is as a result of a change in position requested by the employee.
- The holiday work schedule shall take precedence over the vacation and weekend work schedules. Evening shift employees will not be required to work both the eve and the holiday on Christmas and/or New Year's. Morning shift employees will not be required to work both the holiday (12/24 and 12/31) and the shift after the holiday (12/25 and 1/1) on Christmas and/or New Year's. The Hospital will endeavor to not schedule day shift employees on both the eve and the holidays on Christmas and New Year's. Where such scheduling does not work, employees will be scheduled in the order of reverse seniority.
- §7 Holiday pay will be paid to employees who work from 3:00 p.m. on Christmas and New Years' eve through shifts ending at 7:30 a.m. the days after Christmas and New Year's.
- §8 In units/departments where there are alternative holiday scheduling practices those practices may continue. (only for Laboratory job classifications added to the bargaining unit by certification dated 7/23/2019)
- §9 Upon mutual agreement between the employee and his/her supervisor, the employee may substitute up to three (3) religious holidays for recognized holidays.

- §10 The Hospital will maintain a request list by which twelve (12) hour employees may request time off on holidays in four (4) hour increments. Such requests must be made to the staffing office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the holiday and requests will be granted by seniority by unit.
- §11 A full time employee (5 days, 8-hour shift, only) may elect to work four days in a work week in which they are scheduled off on a holiday.

Article 29 - Vacation

The current PTO policy, Environmental Services Department PTO policy (Appendix A dated 1/1/2009) will remain effective through June 30, 2024.

- Vacation requests will be submitted on an official PTO request form or acceptable method designated by the manager of the department/unit.
- §2 Core staffing requirements will be formulated for each unit/department by the manager. At least ten percent (10%) of the core staff on duty, rounded up to the nearest person, may be granted PTO in advance if requested. Vacations will be scheduled and approved consistent with staffing needs. Every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate vacation requests.
- §3 PTO will be granted based on hospital seniority except as provided in paragraph 8 below.
 - If a PTO request is denied, employee may seek alternate staffing solutions subject
 to Manager's approval. If employee secures coverage for their shift, the covering
 personnel should not generally result in OT, agency staff cannot be used, covering
 employee must have appropriate skill match and competency both employees
 involved in the change must sign a time change request form or other acceptable
 form of communication.
- §4 PTO will be granted based on the needs of the department/unit.
- §5 Employee may not request PTO for an assigned holiday unless arrangements for coverage is made prior to request and is approved by the manager.

SUMMER VACATIONS

- §6 Includes the time from Memorial Day week until Labor Day week.
- Requests must be submitted by February 1st of the year and will be granted by February 15th.

- Requests will include first, second, and third choice (individual weeks). Employees who fail to indicate their preferences within the requesting period will have no right to exercise the hospital seniority rights regarding vacations. An employee who transfers to a different department/unit after the vacation schedule of that department/unit has been established may be required to adapt to the vacation schedule of the new department/unit.
- §9 It is understood that conflicts in choice among employees who sign up for vacation between employees who sign up for a week or more and employees who sign up for single days will be resolved in favor of those who sign up for a week or more. A full week is Sunday to Saturday. An employee may request an additional weekend PTO day off up to two (2) times per year (any time of the year).
- §10 Requests will be granted by seniority for up to two (2) weeks.
- §11 If additional time is available, additional weeks will then be granted, again based on hospital seniority until all weeks have been assigned or all staff have been granted two (2) weeks if requested.
- §12 Additional PTO approval may be requested within a week of the desired time and may be approved if staffing and volume permit.

OTHER VACATIONS

- §13 First week following Labor Day week to November 30th.
 - Requests must be submitted by May 15th and will be granted/denied by May 31st.
- §14 December 1st to February 28th / 29th.
 - a. Requests must be submitted by August 15th and will be granted /denied by August 31st.|
 - b. Requests will be granted by seniority and may be for two (2) consecutive weeks except for Christmas and New Year's weeks.
- §15 March 1st to the week before Memorial Day week.
 - a. Requests must be submitted by November 15th and will be granted/denied by November 30th.
 - b. Requests will be granted by seniority and may be for two (2) consecutive weeks.

OTHER PTO CONSIDERATIONS

- An individual may request PTO any time after the cutoff date for the time frames listed above however, they will not be considered until after all requests that were submitted on time have been granted.
- §17 Individual PTO days may be requested as needed and will be approved/denied based on staffing needs and volumes.
- §18 Employees may cancel scheduled vacation provided they give their manager two (2) weeks' notice prior to the scheduled start of their vacation.
- §19 Employees may not take vacation when they do not have accrued PTO.
- §20 Other Departments that utilize different methods of scheduling PTO may continue to use those methods.

Article 30 - Salary

Any steps with wage rates below \$17.00 an hour shall be eliminated, and all employees shall be moved up to the new lowest step above the minimum rate effective January 1, 2025.

§1 Wage increases

Effective on the first full pay period after October 1, 2024:

- i. Employees on Steps 1 through 14 will progress to the next step and all such steps will increase by 2% as set forth in the attached pay ranges.
- ii. Employees with an hourly rate at or above Step 15 and below Step 30 (off step) will receive a general wage increase of 3.5% in lieu of a step increase.
- iii. Phlebotomists will move up a half grade (5%) before the above raises are applied.

Effective on the first full pay period after October 1, 2025:

- i. Employees on Steps 1 through 14 will progress to the next step and all such steps will increase by 2% as set forth in the attached pay ranges.
- ii. Employees with an hourly rate at or above Step 15 and not on the Step 20 or Step 30 (off step) will receive a general wage increase of 3% in lieu of a step increase.

§4 Longevity Increases

Effective on the first full pay period of April 2025 and April 2026, employees who are beyond the top step and who have thirty years of service, respectively, and are eligible for longevity increases will receive a 3% wage increase.

§5 Per Diem Rates

5a. Effective in the first full pay period after October 1, 2024, fixed per diem employees will receive a 3.5% increase in accordance with Schedule A.

5b. Effective in the first full pay period after October 1, 2025, fixed per diem employees will receive a 3.0% increase in accordance with Schedule A.

5e. Effective in the first full pay period after October 1, 2024 and October 1, 2025, variable per diem employees will progress to the next step and receive a general wage increase in accordance with Section 1 above.

§6 [Intentionally Left Blank]

§7 New Hires

Employees hired on or after the effective date of the agreement shall be placed on the pay ranges and steps based on relevant prior experience, up to Step 14.

Article 31 – Overtime

- Overtime may not be worked without prior authorization of the employee's department manager or supervisor unless it would be unreasonable to expect an employee to seek prior authorization from his/her department manager or supervisor.
- Employees shall be paid one and one half (1 ½) times their regular straight-time hourly rate of pay including applicable shift differential (but excluding any other premiums or incentives) for any hours worked in excess of forty (40) per week or for hours worked in excess of one half (1/2) hour beyond their regularly scheduled workday but without duplication for any overtime hours worked in excess of forty (40) in the work week.

Article 32 - Shift, Weekend and Other Differentials

§1 Employees will be paid the following evening differential: \$1.50/hour beginning in the first pay period following ratification of the agreement and \$1.75/hour in the first full pay period following July 1, 2025.

- Employees will be paid the following morning differential: \$2.50/hour beginning in the first pay period following ratification of the agreement and \$2.75/hour in the first full pay period following July 1, 2025.
- Employees will be paid weekend differential commensurate with the wage scale for all hours worked between 11:00 pm Friday to 11:30 pm Sunday. Such weekend premium will increase twenty-five cents (\$0.25)/hour beginning in the first pay period following ratification of the agreement and twenty-five cents (\$0.25)/hour in the first full pay period following July 1, 2025.
- §4a Charge pay of \$3.00 will be paid to, Medical Laboratory Technicians, Medical Technologists, Radiologic Technologist, Respiratory Therapist (including night shift Respiratory Therapist). Charge assignments will be equitably distributed among employees who have been oriented to charge responsibilities and have demonstrated the capability to perform the duties successfully.
- §4b Charge pay of \$1.50 will be paid to Patient Access Associates and EVS job classifications (except Lead Environmental Services Aide). Charge assignments will be equitably distributed among employees who have been oriented to charge responsibilities and have demonstrated the capability to perform the duties successfully.
- §4c Engineering staff who voluntarily take phone calls after hours will receive \$50 effective in the first full pay period following ratification of this Agreement.

Article 33 – On-Call, Call-Back Pay (not applicable to EVS job classifications except Section 15 – Restricted Call)

§1 A non-exempt employee is considered to be on non-restricted call during a particular period of time if he/she is required to be readily available by telephone or beeper and return to the hospital if necessary. Currently, the following job classifications are covered by this section: Cardiovascular Technician, Certified Sterilization Technician, CT/MRI Technologist, Driver/Tech II HME, Echocardiographic Registered, Echo Technician/Vascular Technician, Endoscopy Assistant, Endoscopy Technician, Lead Certified Sterilization Technician, Lead Echo Technician Registered, Lead Patient Access Associate, MRI Tech, , Surgical Technologist, Surgical Technologist, Certified, Patient Access Associate, RAD Technician Special Procedure, RAD Technician Special Procedure Certified, Respiratory Therapist HME, Sterilization Technician, Surgical Inventory Case Specialist, Surgical Inventory Case Coordinator, Ultrasound Tech (sonographer), Ultrasound Tech (certified). Based on business necessity, the Hospital reserves the right to require employees to be on-call in any unit of the Hospital if it is deemed warranted with forty-five (45) day notice to the Union and thirty (30) days' notice to the employee. On-call occurs when the Hospital assigns an employee who is not assigned to work to be available during a period of time established by the Hospital to come in to work. Such employees shall be compensated for call on the same basis as employees required to take call. Employees required to be on-call will be compensated at the rate of \$3.50 per hour for the on-call period except for the emergent clinical employees listed in section 2 below.

Call pay for emergent clinical employees who are required to report to work within 30 minutes of receiving notice will be increased to \$5 per hour. Eligible job classifications include Cardiovascular Technician, Certified Sterilization Technician, Echocardiographer Registered, Echo Tech/Vascular Tech, Endoscopy Assistant, Endoscopy Technician, HVAC Mechanic, Journeyman Electrician, Lead Electrician, Lead HVAC Mechanic, Lead Certified Sterilization Technician, Lead Echo Tech Registered, Nuclear Med Technologist, Rad Technician Special Procedures, Rad Technician Special Procedures Certified, Surgical Technologist, Surgical Technologist, Certified, Sterilization Technician.

- Non-exempt employees who report to work after being called in will be paid one and one-half (1 ½) times the regular straight-time rate of pay for a minimum of three (3) hours regardless of the duration of the assignment.
- §3 Employees on-call who report to work after being called in will receive the shift differential applicable to that shift when the call back assignment is at least four (4) hours worked on that shift.
- Employees will not be scheduled for night call following a scheduled twelve (12) hour shift unless mutually agreed between the employee and his/her supervisor.
- §5 If an on-call assignment results in an employee working fifteen and one half (15 ½) consecutive hours and is scheduled to work the next consecutive eight (8) hours, the employee will be given the consecutive eight (8) hour shift off. They may elect to take PTO hours if desired.
- If the on-call assignment is completed eight (8) hours or more prior to the next scheduled on-duty time, employees are expected to report for work at their regularly assigned time. If the on-call assignment is completed within eight (8) hours of the employee's next scheduled work starting time, employees may report to work at their regularly scheduled time or report to work no later than eight (8) hours after the on-call assignment was completed. The employee is responsible for notifying his/her supervisor of the option chosen before leaving at the conclusion of the on-call assignment.
- §7 The Hospital may continue or institute voluntary on-call practices.
- §8 On-call requirements will be equitably distributed among department/unit employees who have the appropriate patient care competencies.

- §9 The rule of eighty-five (85) and the substitute pay provisions will be grandfathered for only those employees who are participating in these programs at the time of this agreement.
- §10 PTO shall accrue on all hours worked (including call back hours worked) up to a maximum of eighty (80) hours per pay-period.
- Employees working their regular scheduled shift who are on call after their shift and are required to stay for an additional add-on case/patient may punch out at the close of their regular shift and punch back in immediately as an on-call employee called back to work. This above provision is not intended to be utilized for cases that are already in progress at the time that the on-call shift begins.

The current practice(s) of assigning call to Endoscopy techs shall continue.

Call-Back Pay

- In situations where the time between the end of the normally scheduled work assignment and the actual start of the call-back work is less than thirty (30) minutes, the intervening period will be counted as normal time worked.
- §13 Employees are not eligible for the three (3) hour minimum of call back pay if notified while on Hospital property unless such notification is within one half (1/2) hour following a worked shift. Further, if employees are called in within one (1) hour of a previous call back, the three (3) hour minimum shall not apply.
- §14 Employees who are called back on a holiday shall receive the regular call back rate plus a one (1) time \$25.00 lump sum holiday bonus once in the twenty-four (24) hour holiday period.

Restricted Call

Employees on call who remain at the Hospital due to certain rare and unusual circumstances shall be compensated as follows: all non-worked hours will be compensated at the federal minimum wage rate; all worked hours will be paid one and one half (1 ½) times the regular, straight-time rate of pay. Three (3) hours minimum will be paid, and continuation of on-call rate (federal minimum wage) and differentials if applicable.

Article 34 - Inclement Weather/Natural Disaster

The CEO of the Hospital or her/his designee will declare the Natural Disaster/Storm Policy in effect and communicate this to all managers.

- Staffing Needs: Managers will assess the staffing needs of their department and will adjust the staffing schedule to be put into effect during a natural disaster/storm.

 Employees not needed for direct patient care within their own department will form a resource pool to be coordinated by the Human Resources Department. Individuals in this pool will be floated to departments that have essential patient related needs.
- §2 Grace Period: Employees who report to work within one (1) hour of their usual starting time will be paid as of the start of the shift. An employee who arrives at work later than one (1) hour due to storm conditions or a natural disaster will be extended a sixty (60) minute grace period as time paid. They may use PTO hours or may make up the remaining unpaid time at the end of the shift or at a later time in the week as long as it does not incur overtime and is required to meet staffing needs. Employees are expected to make every effort to report to work on time to relieve employees who are ending their shift.
- Use of PTO: Employees who are on duty and not needed within the Hospital during a natural disaster/storm will be offered the option to be released by their Senior Manager and may utilize PTO. Employees leaving early of their own initiative prior to being released by their department head are not eligible to utilize PTO for the hours not worked and may be subject to discipline.
- §4 Special Pay Provision: Time and one-half will be paid for all hours worked before and/or beyond an employee's normal scheduled hours regardless of number of hours worked.
- §5 Employees must make every effort to report to work as scheduled regardless of weather conditions or other circumstances.

Article 35 – Employee Assistance Program

- §1 The Hospital and the Union jointly recognize that alcoholism and other drug addictions, emotional and behavior-related problems, marital and family conflicts, as well as other major personal or health problems can adversely affect a person's job performance, jeopardize career progress, quality of patient care, productivity and the individual's health and personal well-being.
- It is also recognized that it is for the best interests of the employee, the Hospital and the Union, that when an unresolved life problem does affect job performance, the parties intend to encourage and motivate that employee to seek professional help.
- In accordance with the foregoing, the Hospital, at its expense, will continue to provide the employee assistance program currently in effect or one comparable in services.
- The Hospital and the EAP ensure that the employee's issues and treatment are confidential and not shared with the Hospital unless the sharing of such information is necessary to demonstrate suitability to return to work.

Article 36 - Professional Development and Tuition Assistance Programs

- Benefit status employees (scheduled a minimum of twenty (20) hours) who have completed six (6) months of employment at the time of course registration and who continue to hold a benefits status position upon course completion will be eligible for tuition reimbursement. The Hospital subsidizes staff taking covered courses and/or exams or certifications through reimbursement of applicable expenses upon successful completion.
- §2 For purposes of this article, the terms covered course and exam/certification are defined as:

Covered course:

An educational program that is part of an accredited degree program, or a college course that is (1) specifically job related, or (2) may lead to future hospital assignment, or (3) is required to complete a degree program; and, provides at least one (1) CEU (ten (10) contact hours) or one (1) college credit. Accredited distance learning or on-line education will be approved if they meet the definition for a covered course. Employer reserves the right to request validation of official acceptance into an accredited degree program and the validation of the education institutions accreditation by any agency listed by the U.S. Department of Education or State. Questions concerning course relevance should be discussed with your supervisor or a member of the Human Resources Department. Non-degree or graduate degree courses or programs that are unrelated to the employee's current job or other reasonably attainable Hospital jobs will not be covered.

Exams/Certification:

- Certification exam fees for job related certification.
- Hospital required certification course and exam fees will be covered
- Employees must be actively at work to be eligible to apply for or receive benefits under this program. Reimbursement is dependent on the number of hours per pay period at the time of course completion. Employees who terminate or reduce hours below benefit status while taking a course are not eligible for reimbursement. An employee who is laid off during the approved course(s) is still eligible for tuition assistance and will be reimbursed for tuition and expenses as outlined above through the conclusion of the course/semester for which they were eligible.
- Reimbursement will be made for tuition, books, registration fees, and exam fees, except for late fees, provided they are not covered by any other program. The intent of this program is not to duplicate any other reimbursement program, such as but not limited to,

- any other Hospital funds or the GI Bill. All dollars reimbursed from other programs will be deducted from the amount of reimbursement employees are eligible for under this program.
- For undergraduate courses the equivalent of a grade "C" or better or for graduate level courses "B" or better (or "pass" in a pass/fail grading system) is required in order to be reimbursed.
- This program applies to courses taken outside working hours. Nothing in this policy is intended to imply approval for absence from the job to attend courses.
- The reimbursement amounts are the same whether study is at the graduate or undergraduate level. Full-time employees are eligible for one hundred percent (100) % of reimbursable expenses up to a maximum of \$2,500 per academic year (Sept.-Aug.). Part-time employees are eligible for benefits on a pro-rated basis based on standard hours per pay period.
- §8 All mandatory hospital education and training programs will be on paid time with manager's pre-approval or direction.
- §9 The Hospital agrees to pay the certification exam fees and re-certification fees for mandatory and-non mandatory professional certifications.
- Should an employee resign from his or her employment with the Hospital for any reason within one (1) year of being reimbursed under the Tuition Assistance Program, he or she is obligated to repay the Hospital the total amount of the Hospital's reimbursements for tuition assistance paid in the one-year period prior to resignation and that such amount will be considered a "Loan" from the Hospital. The employee authorizes the Hospital to deduct the full amount of the "Loan" from any amounts due at the time of my resignation, including final wages or PTO payout. Repayment of any remaining amounts of the "Loan" will be made in monthly installments commencing in the month following resignation and ending upon full repayment of the "Loan".

Article 37 – Flexible Benefits Program

The Hospital shall continue to offer full-time and part-time employees with regularly scheduled hours of forty (40) or more per pay period the opportunity to participate in the Care New England Hospital Flexible Benefits Program ("CNE Flexible Benefit Plan"), the benefits of which are generally described in Articles 38 through 42. The ability of the employee to select benefits levels will be governed by the plan.

Article 38 - Health Insurance

§1 The Hospital shall offer full-time and part-time employees with regularly scheduled hours of forty (40) or more per pay period the opportunity to participate in one of the

Care New England Healthcare plans. These include the CNE PPO Plan, CNE HMO Plan, CNE Tiered PPO and HMO Tiered Plans. The Hospital has the right to revise and/or replace these plans with other plans including point-of-service and managed care plans provided the coverage is substantially similar and/or to offer additional new plans. In the event changes to the health plan(s) result in a plan that is not substantially equivalent, the Union shall have the right to a re-opener limited to healthcare benefits, and Article 3 will be suspended. Further, the Hospital may eliminate one of the non-CNE Tier 1 providers.

§2 Employees' contributions for such plans shall be as follows:

Full-time employees 2024-2029:

	CNE PPO Plan	CNE HMO	CNE Tiered	CNE
		Plan	PPO Plan	Tiered
				HMO Plan
Family Coverage	15%	11.5%	10%	6.5%
Individual	15%	11.5%	10%	6.5%
Coverage				

Part-time employees 2024-2029:

	CNE PPO Plan	CNE HMO Plan	CNE Tiered PPO Plan	CNE Tiered HMO Plan
Family Coverage	25%	16%	20%	11%
Individual	25%	16%	20%	11%
Coverage				

- §3 The Employer agrees to continue the Supplemental Health Insurance Benefits Policy.
- §4 Intentionally Left Blank.
- Employees will be eligible for CanaRX and the specialty in-house pharmacy incentive and vision care provisions to the same extent they are made available to non-union employees.
- The plans referred to in §1 above will be the same as existing Union plans effective January 1, 2018 and will be amended as follows for all Union members.
 - a. There will be a premium of \$38.50 per pay period for employees whose spouse is covered by the Hospital's health insurance but who otherwise has access to ACA compliant health insurance coverage through his or her employer ("Spousal Premium").
 - b. Employees will be eligible to participate in the CNE wellness credit program.

§7 Effective January 1, 2025, divorced spouses not already covered by the employee's insurance as of that date shall not be eligible for insurance coverage.

Article 39 - Dental Insurance

- The Hospital shall continue to offer full-time and part-time employees with regularly scheduled hours of forty (40) or more per pay period the applicable Delta Dental Levels of coverage currently in effect.
- §2 Employees shall continue to contribute to the premium cost of dental insurance as described below:

Full-time employees 2024-2029:

		High Option	Standard Option
	Family Coverage	25 %	4.5 %
	Individual Coverage	17 %	4.5 %
Part-time emp	oloyees 2024-2029:		
	Family Coverage	42 %	32 %
	Individual Coverage	26 %	4.5 %

Article 40 - Life Insurance and Accidental Death and Dismemberment

The Hospital will continue to provide full-time and part-time employees with regularly scheduled hours of forty (40) or more per pay period life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment plans in accordance with the CNE Flexible Benefit Plan. The Hospital will continue to pay the full cost of basic life and accidental death and dismemberment coverage. Employee will continue to pay the full cost of supplemental and dependent coverage.

Article 41 – Long-Term Disability (LTD) Insurance

The Hospital shall continue to provide full-time and part-time employees with regularly scheduled hours of forty (40) or more per pay period the basic and additional long term disability insurance program in accordance with the CNE Flexible Benefit Plan. The employees will continue to pay the differential in cost associated with the additional LTD coverage.

Article 42 - CNE 403(b) Match & Savings Plan

The Hospital shall continue to offer the Care New England 403(b) Match & Savings Plan. In the event that the Hospital terminates the defined benefit portion of the employee pension, employees will receive annuities and/or lump sum benefit options equal to what they would have been entitled to have the pension remained operative.

Matching Contribution:

The Employer, in its discretion, will make matching contributions to your pre-tax and / or Roth contributions, but in no event will the total matching contribution exceed the greater of Five-Hundred Dollars (\$500) or two percent (2%) of your compensation for the plan year.

Non-elective Contribution:

Non-elective contributions will be based on years of service as set forth below:

Years of Service	Employer Contribution
1-5	3%
6-10	3.5%
11-15	4%
16-20	4.5%
21-25	5.5%
26+	6.5%

Employees currently at employer contribution rates of 9% and 8% will go to 7%. Otherwise, employees will not have her / his employer contribution reduced in the conversion to the new plan. Instead, he / she will stay at her / his employer contribution rate until she / he progresses under the new schedule.

§2 Intentionally Left Blank

Article 43 - Per Diems

All per diem positions will be required to work 24 hours per month (unless by exception of the manager) and commit to work one (1) major Holiday each calendar year (July 4th, Thanksgiving, Christmas, New Years). The commitment on the holiday must be to work either an eight (8) hour shift or a twelve (12) hour shift unless the manager agrees in advance that a participant may work a shorter block of time over multiple holidays. A per diem shall not be required to work the same major holiday in two consecutive years.

If applicable, all shifts are selected through the Kent web-based scheduling system, but this does not preclude requests to fill staffing needs by managers, supervisors, or the staffing office. For EVS job classifications, per diem employees shall make their availability for shifts known to the Employer.

The number of per diem positions may be limited and will be offered as needed.

Per Diem positions may be posted or granted after request by an employee with the approval of the Manager. These requests will not be unreasonably denied.

Straight time will be paid to all Per Diem employees, who through the electronic scheduling system, select any combination of hours up to twelve (12) in a shift.

For EVS job classifications, per diems must be willing to work fifty percent (50%) of the shifts they are offered within her/his declared availability.

All Per Diem participants must complete all required CBLs and must maintain the required competencies for continued employment.

Article 44 - Intentionally Left Blank

Article 45 - Professional Issues Committee

A member of the collective bargaining unit will represent the bargaining unit at meetings of the Professional Issues Committee referred to in Article 45 of the Nursing Collective Bargaining Agreement when said meetings are addressing matters that impact this bargaining unit.

Article 46 – Separability

In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall at any time be declared invalid by a final judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction or through a final decree of a government, federal, state or local body, such decision shall not invalidate the entire agreement; it being the expressed intention of the parties hereto that all other provisions not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect. The parties agree that any provisions to this Agreement which have been invalidated shall be the subject of negotiations within a thirty (30) day period.

Article 47 - Printing of Agreement

The parties will share equally the cost of printing this Agreement. The number of copies printed shall be sufficient to provide a copy to each employee and each supervisor and manager with responsibility for employees and a reasonable number of additional copies for newly-hired employees and other appropriate purposes.

Article 48 - Duration

This Agreement shall become effective upon ratification and shall remain in full force and effect through June 30, 2029, except that there will be a wage and outsourcing

reopener between April 1, 2026 and June 30, 2026 to bargain wages for the period between July 1, 2026 through June 30, 2029 and over outsourcing.

The no Strike no Lockout clause will be suspended if the parties are unable to reach an agreement during the reopener.

Either party desiring changes or amendments of this Agreement prior to the expiration of same shall give the other party notice in writing not less than ninety (90) days immediately prior to the expiration of this Agreement or any extension thereof specifying that changes or amendments are desired; otherwise, the Agreement renews itself for yearly periods without change.

Article 49 - Intentionally Left Blank

Article 50 - Miscellaneous

- §1. Hospital Discounts: Employees will continue to participate in the Hospital's discount policies.
 - Daylight Saving Time: The Hospital shall continue its policy regarding Hours of Work regarding daylight savings time as it was in effect on the date of this Agreement.
- §3. Voluntary Reduction Time and Convenience Time: The Hospital shall continue its policy on CT and VRT as it was in effect on the date of this agreement except that CT time shall be offered to employees on the basis of equitable rotation unit by unit. An employee on CT time may not be required to return to work.
- §4. The Hospital shall continue its policy on Employee Health Office as it was in effect on the date of this agreement.
- §5 The General Maintenance III classification shall be identified as General Maintenance III (including certified locksmiths).
- §6 Sections A and B of the current snow removal policy will be incorporated as an Appendix B to the Collective Bargaining Agreement.
- §7 Intentionally Left Blank
- Marketing Representatives HME employees required to use their cell phone for work-related purposes and internet access for work-related issues shall be reimbursed at a rate of \$32.30 per pay period.
- §9 Telephone Operators may work remotely at the discretion of management.
- §10 OPIU Oncology Services Secretary, Unit Secretary, Unit Secretary Emer. Dept, Secretary Medical Clerk, Secretary Sleep Center, Surgical Services Secretary (Clerical Group 1C) and EKG Technicians II with CNA licenses may each pick up shifts in her/his non-

primary classification provided they are capable, qualified, properly oriented and maintain their competencies as determined by the Hospital.

Article 51 - Paid Time Off

- §1 Scope: All benefit status employees are eligible for PTO.
- §2 **Definitions**: PTO is Paid Time Off, EIB is Extended Illness Benefit. All PTO and EIB shall include shift differential.
- Earning PTO. PTO is accrued based on hours paid as a factor applied to the first eighty (80) hours paid per pay period and regular paid hours during a Leave of Absence for both full time and part time benefit status personnel. The table below shows the maximum number of days (eight (8) hours each) that can be accrued by eighty (80) hour per pay period staff. Actual accruals will be based on an accrual factor applied to each hour paid (not to exceed NTE eighty (80) PPP) and regular paid hours during a leave of absence. The accrual factor is calculated by first multiplying the number of days accrued per year (see schedule) by eight (8) hours per day to determine the maximum number of hours which can be accrued in a year, and then dividing this amount by 2080 hours. This gives the number of hours accrued for each hour paid. As stated above, this factor is then applied to the first eighty (80) hours paid in a pay period to determine the number of hours the employee actually accrues. This formula is the same for full time and part time personnel.
- §4 PAID TIME OFF ACCRUAL SCHEDULE- FULL TIME EMPLOYEES hired before November 1, 2020 in the following job classifications only:

C.N.A, Emergency Room Technician, Anesthesia Assistant, Anesthesia Tech, Anesthesia Technician/Orderly, Cath Lab/IR Tech, Endoscopy Technician, Mental Health Worker, Operating Room Technician, Pre-Op/Outpatient, Pre-Admission Technician, Secretary/C.N.A. and all EVS jobs.

Years of Service	PTO	Max. PTO Accrual Amt.	EIB
0-3 Years:	32	42	4
3-8 Years:	37	47	4
8-25 Years:	42	52	4
25-35 Years:	47	57	4
35+ Years:	52	62	4

Benefit eligible part time employees (job classifications listed above) hired before November 1, 2020 will accrue on a pro-rated basis from the table above.

Employees will accrue PTO at seventy-five percent (75%) of the above accruals during the first year of their employment.

All new employee and other employees who become eligible for PTO benefits on or after November 1, 2020 in accordance with the terms of the collective bargaining agreement will accrue benefits as set forth below.

PAID TIME OFF ACCRUAL SCHEDULE- FULL TIME EMPLOYEES HIRED OR BENEFIT ELIGIBLE ON OR AFTER NOVEMBER 1, 2020

Years of Service	PTO	Max. PTO Accrual Amt.	EIB
0-3 Years:	30	35.8	4
3-8 Years:	34	40.5	4
8-25 Years:	38	45.4	4
25-35 Years:	42	40.2	4
35+ Years:	46	55	4

Benefit eligible part time employees hired on or after November 1, 2020 will accrue on a pro-rated basis from the table above.

Employees will accrue PTO at seventy-five percent (75%) of the above accruals during the first year of their employment or benefit eligibility.

- Maximum Accrual. Employees will accrue PTO in their PTO bank up to a maximum PTO bank amount as set forth above. Once an employee has reached their maximum accrual amount, accruals will stop. Accruals will commence again when the bank falls below the maximum accrual amount.
- Using PTO. PTO can be used for any reason. PTO usage should be scheduled by the employee and approved by the supervisor in advance. Occasionally, unexpected needs will necessitate unscheduled PTO. Supervisors are responsible to record in electronic payroll system whether PTO used was scheduled or unscheduled by the appropriate pay code. Employees may use one unscheduled PTO day as a personal day without being considered UPTO, provided the employee has PTO in their bank and is not currently in corrective action for time and attendance issues. Such personal days cannot be used on weekends or holidays. Such days shall not be used on Halloween, the last seven (7) days in December, the first seven (7) days in January or on a scheduled work day adjacent to a holiday or approved PTO day. Exceptions to this rule will be made for extenuating circumstances (such as being stuck in an airport).

When an employee in an active status is absent from work and PTO time is available in the bank, PTO must be used up to the level of the employee's standard hours. When an employee is on an approved leave of absence, the employee may use PTO in the first week of absence. After the initial absence of one (1) week of their scheduled hours, EIB is to be utilized for the remainder of the leave until EIB is exhausted and then PTO must be used if available. Employees may retain the equivalent of one (1) pay period of scheduled PTO hours in their PTO bank. Employees using PTO shall not be required to

clock in their PTO hours. Employees will not be required to discharge UPTO if they miss work due to documented work-related COVID-19 exposure.

- Selling PTO. Employees may sell up to thirty (30) days per year of PTO in two (2) different ways during Open Enrollment. PTO will accrue on PTO which is sold/cashed under either method below. Fifteen (15) day maximum allowed for each option. (1). PTO can be sold on a pay period basis in increments of eight (8) hours. Using this method, the value of time sold will be paid to the employee in small amounts each pay period at the employee's open enrollment rate of pay. These payments will be suspended when the employee is on an unpaid leave of absence. (2). PTO can be cashed in one lump sum cash out. Using this method, the value will be paid in one check just before the end of the year at the rate in effect at the time paid. This PTO time will be taken out of the bank at the time it is paid. At year end, the payment of the cash out will depend on the time being in the bank. If an employee has less hours in the bank than had been specified for sale at the beginning of the year, the cash out will be equal to the amount in the bank. Employees hired mid-year will be able to sell a pro-rated amount of PTO under (1) or (2) above based on when in the year they are hired.
- Negative PTO Balances. In extraordinary circumstances, the Senior Human Resources Executive may authorize negative charges to an employee's PTO bank up to a maximum of sixteen (16) hours negative. For example, this would be appropriate when a holiday falls immediately after an employee is hired and before sufficient PTO time has been accrued by that employee.
- Extended Illness Bank (EIB). Employees will accrue EIB at the rate of four (4) days §9 per year, pro-rated for part time, based on hours paid excluding overtime hours, not to exceed eighty (80) ppp. EIB time can only be used for employee illness after the employee has been absent on unscheduled PTO or other unscheduled absence for one (1) week. For the purposes of this policy, this "one week" of absence shall be the equivalent of one half of the employee's regular schedule of hours/standard hours for the pay period; e.g., for an employee whose standard hours per pay period is fifty-six (56), EIB may be used after twenty-eight (28) hours of unscheduled PTO or unscheduled absence have been used. During that week of absence the employee must use PTO if available. If no PTO is available, the employee will be in an unpaid status. Negative EIB balances will not be permitted. There is no maximum accrual of EIB. Healthcare Provider Certification Form must be provided for illnesses of three (3) days or more unless deemed unnecessary by Occupational Health, and the employee must clear back to work through Occupational Health. Employees may receive TDI while on EIB or PTO. Employees may use EIB for the first three (3) days of an absence due to an on-the-job assault.
- §10 Family Sick Time. Employees may use twenty-four (24) hours per year from their EIB bank (after one (1) week of PTO usage) for the employee's parent, spouse, common-law spouse, same sex domestic partner, or child because of their illness, injury or disability.

- §11 Grandfathering of Sick Bank Cash Out. For employees hired prior to 4/1/99, a record will be kept of their sick bank balances. When these employees terminate, if they have ten (10) years of service at the time of termination, they will be paid fifty percent (50%) of the number of hours in their EIB bank up to the number of hours they had on 4/3/99 at their 4/3/99 rate.
- §12 Status Changes. (1) New Hires. Employees will accrue PTO at seventy-five percent (75%) of the above accruals during the first year of their employment or benefit eligibility. (2) Change from benefit to part time non benefit status: PTO balance will be paid off. (3) Change from benefit status or part time non benefit status to per diem: Both PTO and EIB will be paid off if applicable under §11 above.
- §13 **Termination**. All PTO will be paid upon termination. Checks will be cut in the pay period following the final paycheck.
- Holidays. Full time employees will use PTO when off on a holiday so long as there is PTO available in their bank and they have not worked their standard hours for the pay period. If there is no PTO time available, the employee will be unpaid for the day. If the employee worked their standard hours eighty (80) hours, they will not have to use PTO. It is not necessary for the part time employee to use PTO if off on a holiday. All non-exempt employees who work on a holiday will be compensated at time and one half their base rate plus applicable differential.
- \$15 **Absent Time.** If an employee in an active status is absent and the PTO bank is empty, the time will be unpaid. If an active employee has PTO time in their bank and is absent, the time must be paid from the PTO bank to the extent necessary to maintain the employee's compensation at the normal standard hours. This applies to full time and part time status employees. If the absence is not scheduled and PTO is available, it will be recorded as unscheduled PTO.
- §16 PTO and EIB While on a LOA. Employees on LOA will use EIB and PTO. Leaves for personal or family reasons, i.e., to care for an ill family member as specified in §10 above qualify only for PTO. EIB may not be used unless the employee is ill/disabled. Parental leaves only qualify for EIB for the period of disability (normally six (6) weeks). PTO and/or EIB is required to be used up to the available scheduled hours when available. Employee may retain one (1) pay period of scheduled hours in the PTO bank.
- §17 **EIB and PTO While on Worker's Compensation**. EIB may not be used while on worker's compensation. PTO may be used for the first three (3) days of a worker's compensation leave and thereafter at the employee's discretion.
- §18 **Overtime Calculations**. Overtime will accrue on scheduled PTO. No overtime will accrue on unscheduled PTO or EIB.
- §19 Intentionally Left Blank.

§20 For EVS job classifications, Anesthesia Assistant, Anesthesia Technician/Orderly, Cath Lab/IR Technician, Emergency Room Technician, Endoscopy Technician, Mental Health Worker, Nursing Assistant, Operating Room Technician, Operating Room Tech, Certified, Pre-Admission Technician, Secretary/Medical Assistant (Wound Care) only:

30 Year Day Off. Employees who have completed thirty (30) years continuous service from their most recent date of hire will be eligible for an additional paid day off per year.

Article 52, 53, and 54 - Intentionally Left Blank

Article 55 – Mutual Dignity & Respect

In order to provide efficient and dignified care to all Kent patients, the Employer and Union agree that all parties to this agreement (i.e., the Employer and its representatives, the Union and its representatives, and all bargaining unit members), will treat each other with mutual dignity and respect. When it becomes necessary to apprise an employee of a performance problem, discussion and/or discipline shall be conducted in a professional manner, avoiding embarrassment and public display. In addition, when it becomes necessary for an employee to discuss a matter of disagreement with a supervisor or other management representative, this discussion also shall be conducted in a professional manner, avoiding embarrassment and public display.

Article 56 – Successors and Assigns

This agreement shall be binding in all respects upon the successors and assigns of the parties. In the event of an agreement of any kind whatsoever that results in a transfer of a majority ownership, management or operational control, this agreement shall be binding on the party or parties assuming such majority ownership, management or operational control. As soon as practicable, Kent Hospital shall give the Union notice in writing of the agreement or of a written proposed agreement to transfer majority ownership, management or operational control, including the names and addresses of the transferee(s). The parties agree that a violation of this Article shall be deemed irreparably harmful to the Union and its members for the purposes of any application for injunctive relief.

SIGNATURE PAGE

SIGNATURE PAGE

UNITED NURSES & ALLIED PROFESSIONALS, LOCAL 5008

By: Patriag in

KENT COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

y: Line / base

Pay Ranges - UNAP Other 2024-2026

						G S	ray kanges Cleaning Aide i	_							
Range A	-	2	3	4	5	9	_ 7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15
10/1/23-6/30/24	\$ 12.87	\$ 13.36	\$ 13.87	\$\frac{5}{5} \frac{13.87}{5} \frac{5}{14.40} \frac{5}{5} \frac{14.49}{5} \frac{5}{5} \frac{15.52}{5} \frac{5}{6} \frac{17.23}{5} \frac{5}{17.74} \frac{5}{5} \frac{18.28}{5} \frac{5}{18.28} \frac{5}{5} \frac{19.39}{5} \frac{5}{19.97} \frac{19.99}{5}	\$ 14.95	\$ 15.52	\$ 16.11	\$ 16.73	\$ 17.23	\$ 17.74	\$ 18.28	\$ 18.82	\$ 19.39	\$ 19.97	\$ 20.58
10/13/24 - 10/11/25	\$ 13,09	8,13,59	\$-14-11	5-14.11 5-14.65 5-15.21 \$ 15.83 5 16.43 \$ 17.06 \$ 17.57 \$ 18.10 \$ 18.64 \$ 19.20 \$ 19.78 \$ 20.37	\$-15.21	\$ 15.83	\$ 16.43	\$ 17.06	\$ 17.57	\$ 18.10	\$ 18.64	\$ 19.20	\$ 19.78	\$ 20.37	\$ 21.00
10/12/25 - 6/30/26	25.52	\$ 13.32 \$ 13.83	\$ 14.36	\$\frac{5_1436}{5_1436} \frac{5_14.91}{5_15.48} \frac{5_16.14}{5_16.72} \frac{5_17.40}{5_17.40} \frac{5_18.46}{5_18.46} \frac{5_18.46}{5_18.01} \frac{5_19.01}{5_19.01} \frac{5_19.59}{5_10.79} \frac{5_20.78}{5_20.78} \frac{5_21.42}{5_20.78}	\$ 15.48	\$ 16.11	\$ 16.72	\$ 17.40	\$ 17.92	\$ 18.46	\$ 19.01	\$ 19.59	\$ 20.17	\$ 20.78	\$ 21.42

Anesthesia Assistant, Cleaning Aide II, Document Coordinator, Equipment Technician, Food Service Associate, Hospitality Associate, HME Store Clerk, Lead Barista, Linen Aide,	t, Cleaning	; Alde II, Do	ocument Co	oordinator,	Equipmen	nt Technici	an, Food St	ervice Asso	clate, Hos	pitality As	sociate, HA	VE Store CI	erk, Lead i	Barista, Un	en Aide,
						Tra	Transport Aide								
Range B	-	7	3	4	5	9	1	8	6	10	11	12	13	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	15
10/1/23-6/30/24	\$ 14.15	\$ 14.69	37.51.6	\$ 15.84	\$ 16.44	\$ 17.07	\$ 17.72	\$ 18.40	\$ 18.95	\$ 19.52	\$ 20.10	\$ 20.70	\$ 21.33	\$ 21.97	\$ 22.64
10/13/24-10/11/25 5-14-40 5-14-40 5-14-52 5-15-52 5-16-15 5-16-77 5-17-41 5-18-07 5-18-76 5-19-33 5-19-91 5-20-50 5-21-12 5-21-75 5-22-40 5-23-09	\$ 14.40	\$ 14.95	\$ 15.52	\$ 16.15	\$ 16.77	\$ 17.41	\$ 18.07	\$ 18.76	\$ 19.33	\$ 19.91	\$ 20.50	\$ 21.12	\$ 21.75	\$ 22.40	\$ 23.09
10/12/25 - 6/30/26 \$ 14.65 \$ 15.31	\$ 14.65	2 15 2	855	9 16 43	\$ 17.10	\$ 17.76	\$ 18.44	\$ 19.14	\$ 19.71	\$ 20.30	\$ 20.91	\$ 21.54	\$ 22.19	\$ 22.85	\$ 23.55

Anesthesia Technician/Orderly, Cath Lab/	clan/Orde	rly, Cath La	ıb/IR Techn	ician, Coo	k I, Lead Er DIC), Sieer	ivironmen	tal Service. SuppRece	ook I, Lead Environmental Services Aide, Radiology Aide WDICI, Sleep Lab Aide, SuppReceiving Clerk FoodSrycs	Jiology Aid FoodSrvcs	le (all area)/IR Technician, Cook i, Lead Environmental Services Aide, Radiology Aide (all areas: Regular, Front Office, MRI/CT, Reading Room, WDIC), Sleep Lab Aide, SuppReceiving Clerk FoodSrvcs	Front Offi	ce, MRI/C	T, Reading	Room,
Range C	-	2	3	4	5	9	_	8	6	10	11 12	12	13	13 14	15
10/1/23-6/30/24 \$ 15.57 \$ 16.16	25.51 2	\$ 16.16		\$ 17.42	\$ 18.09	\$ 18.78	\$ 19.50	\$ 20.23	\$ 20.84	\$ 21.47	5 16.78 \$ 17.42 \$ 18.09 \$ 18.78 \$ 19.50 \$ 20.23 \$ 20.23 \$ 21.47 \$ 21.47 \$ 22.11 \$ 22.77 \$ 23.46 \$ 24.16 \$ 24.90	\$ 22.77	\$ 23.46	\$ 24.16	\$ 24.90
10/13/24-10/11/25 5 15.84 \$	\$ 15.84	\$ 16.49		\$ 17.77	\$ 18.45	\$ 19.15	\$ 19.89	\$ 20.64	\$ 21.26	\$ 21.90	\$ 17.12 \$ 17.77 \$ 18.45 \$ 19.15 \$ 19.15 \$ 20.64 \$ 21.26 \$ 21.90 \$ 22.55 \$ 23.23 \$ 23.93 \$ 24.64 \$ 25.40	\$ 23.23	\$ 23.93	\$ 24.64	\$ 25.40
10/12/25 - 6/30/26 \$ 16.12 \$	\$ 16.12	\$-16.78		\$ 18.13	\$ 18.82	\$ 19.54	\$ 20.28	\$ 21.05	\$ 21.68	\$ 22.33	<u>5 17.46 \$ 18.13 \$ 18.82 \$ 19.54 \$ 20.28 \$ 21.05 \$ 21.08 \$ 22.33 \$ 23.00 \$ 23.69 \$ 24.41 \$ 25.14 \$ 25.91</u>	\$ 23.69	\$ 24.41	\$ 25.14	\$ 25.91

Cook II, Customer Service Representativ	Service R	epresenta	tive HME, E	ve HME, EKG Technician II, Emergency Room Technician, Endoscopy Assistant, General Maintenance II, Groundskeeper, Insurance	:lan II, Eme	rgency Ro	om Techni	cian, Endos	scopy Assis	stant, Gen	eral Maint	enance II, G	Sroundske	eper, Insu	ance
Coordinator HME, Lead Radiology Aide, P	ead Radio	ology Aide,	, Medical Tr	Medical Transcription Lab, Mechanic, Med Secretary Cardiac Cath Lab, Nursing Assistant, OPIU Oncology Services Secretary, Painter,	n Lab, Mec	hanic, Met	1 Secretary	Cardiac Ce	th Lab, No	ırsing Assi	stant, OPII	J Oncology	Services S	ecretary, P	ainter,
Petient Access Associate, Pre-Admission Technician, Room Service Operator, Secretary/Medical Assistant (Wound Care), Secretary Medical Clerk, Sterilization Technician (non-	late, Pre-	Admission	Technician,	, Room Ser	vice Opera	itor, Secret	:ary/Medic	al Assistan	t (Wound	Care), Seci	retary Med	lical Clerk,	Sterilizatio	n Technici	-uou) ue
certified), Surgical Services Secretary, Secretary (Sleep Lab, Technical Services, Vascular Lab), Telecommunications Operator, Unit Secretary, Unit Secretary, Emer. Dept.	Services	: Secretary,	, Secretary	(Sleep Lab,	Technical	Services, \	ascular La	b), Telecon	nmunicati	ons Opera	or, Unit Se	cretary, U	nit Secreta	ry, Emer. D	ept.
Range D	1	7	3	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15	5	9	7	8	6	10	11	12	13	14	15
10/1/23-6/30/24 \$ 17.12 \$ 17.78	\$ 17.12	\$ 17.78	\$ 18.45	<u> 5 18.45 5 19.16 5 19.89 5 20.65 5 21.44 5 22.26 5 22.93 5 23.62 5 24.32 5 25.05 5 25.80 5 26.58 5 27.40 5 27</u>	\$ 19.89	\$ 20.65	\$ 21.44	\$ 22.26	\$ 22.93	\$ 23.62	\$ 24.32	\$ 25.05	\$ 25.80	\$ 26.58	\$ 27.40
10/13/24 - 10/11/25 \$ 17.46 \$ 18.13	\$ 17.46	\$ 18.13	\$ 18.82	\$ 18.82 \$ 19.54 \$ 20.29 \$ 21.06 \$ 21.87 \$ 22.70 \$ 23.39 \$ 24.09 \$ 24.81 \$ 25.55 \$ 26.32 \$ 27.11 \$ 27.95	\$ 20.29	\$ 21.06	\$ 21.87	\$ 22.70	\$ 23.39	\$ 24.09	\$ 24.81	\$ 25.55	\$ 26.32	\$ 27.11	\$ 27.95
10/12/25 - 6/30/26 \$ 17.81 \$ 18.49	\$ 17.81	\$ 18.49	\$ 19.20	\$ 19.20 \$ 19.93 \$ 20.69 \$ 21.49 \$ 22.31 \$ 23.16 \$ 23.85 \$ 24.57 \$ 25.31 \$ 26.07 \$ 26.85 \$ 27.65 \$ 28.50	\$ 20.69	\$ 21.49	\$ 22.31	\$ 23.16	\$ 23.85	\$ 24.57	\$ 25.31	\$ 26.07	\$ 26.85	\$ 27.65	\$ 28.50
	-														

		:	•		Phlebot	omist, Phi	ebotomist	Phiebotomist, Phiebotomist Send Out Clerk							
Range D.2	Į.	2	3	4	3	9	7	8	6	10	11	12	13	14	15
9/29/2024 5 17.98 \$ 18.66 \$	\$ 17.98	\$ 18.66		\$ 20.12	\$ 20.89	\$ 21.68	\$ 22.51	\$ 23.37	\$ 24.07	\$ 24.80	\$ 25.54	19.38 \$ 20.12 \$ 20.89 \$ 21.68 \$ 22.51 \$ 23.37 \$ 24.07 \$ 24.80 \$ 25.54 \$ 26.31 \$ 27.10 \$ 27.91 \$ 28.77	\$ 27.10	\$ 27.91	\$ 28.77
10/13/24-10/11/25 \$ 18.34 \$ 19.04 \$	\$ 18.34	\$ 19.04		\$ 20.52	\$ 21.30	\$ 22.12	\$ 22.96	\$ 23.84	\$ 24.56	\$ 25.29	\$ 26.05	19.76 \$ 20.52 \$ 21.30 \$ 22.12 \$ 22.96 \$ 23.84 \$ 24.56 \$ 25.29 \$ 26.05 \$ 26.83 \$ 27.64 \$ 28.47 \$ 29.34	\$ 27.64	\$ 28.47	\$ 29.34
10/12/25 - 6/30/26 \$ 18.70 \$ 19.42 \$	\$ 18.70	\$ 19.42	\$ 20.16	\$ 20.93	\$ 21.73	\$ 22.56	\$ 23.42	\$ 24.32	\$ 25.05	\$ 25.80	\$ 26.57	20.16 \$ 20.93 \$ 21.73 \$ 22.56 \$ 23.42 \$ 24.32 \$ 24.32 \$ \$ 25.05 \$ 25.80 \$ 26.57 \$ 27.37 \$ 27.37 \$ 28.19 \$ 29.04 \$ 29.93	\$ 28.19	\$ 29.04	\$ 29.93
Boiler Room Operator, Cardiology Coordinator Tech Services, Certified Sterilization Technician, Driver/Tech II HME, Endoscopy Technician, Financial Counselor, Lead Customer	, Cardiolo	gy Coordir	nator Tech	Services, C	ertified St	erilization	Technician	1, Driver/T	ach II HME	, Endosco	by Technic	dan, Finan	cial Counse	elor, Lead	Customer
Service Representative HME. Lead Patient Access Associate, Lead Pre-Admission Technician, Send Out Specialist/Phlebotomist, Staffing Coordinator, Surgical Inventory Case	ve HME. L	ead Patier	it Access A	ssociate, L	ead Pre-Ac	Imission To	echnician,	Send Out	Specialist/	Phleboton	nist, Staffi	ng Coordir	nator, Surg	ical Invent	tory Case
Range	-	2	3	4	25	9	_	8	6	10	11	12	13	14	15
10/1/23-6/30/24 \$ 18.84 \$ 19.56 \$	\$ 18.84	\$ 19.56	\$ 20.30	\$ 21.08	\$ 21.88	\$ 22.72	\$ 23.59	\$ 24.49	\$ 25.22	\$ 25.98	\$ 26.76	20.30 \$ 21.08 \$ 21.88 \$ 22.72 \$ 23.59 \$ 24.49 \$ 25.22 \$ 25.98 \$ 26.76 \$ 27.56 \$ 28.39 \$ 29.24 \$ 30.14	\$ 28.39	\$ 29.24	\$ 30.14
10/13/24-10/11/25 \$ 19.21 \$ 19.95 \$	\$ 19.21	\$ 19.95	\$ 20.71	\$ 21.50	\$ 22.32	\$ 23.18	\$ 24.06	\$ 24.98	\$ 25.73	\$ 26.50	\$ 27.30	20.71 \$ 21.50 \$ 22.32 \$ 23.18 \$ 24.06 \$ 24.98 \$ 25.73 \$ 26.50 \$ 27.30 \$ 28.11 \$ 28.96 \$ 29.83 \$ 30.74	\$ 28.96	\$ 29.83	\$ 30.74
10/12/25 - 6/30/26 \$ 19.60 \$ 20.35 \$	\$ 19.60	\$ 20.35	\$ 21.12	\$ 21.93	\$ 22.77	\$ 23.64	\$ 24.54	\$ 25.48	\$ 26.24	\$ 27.03	\$ 27.84	21.12 \$ 21.93 \$ 22.77 \$ 23.64 \$ 24.54 \$ 25.48 \$ 26.24 \$ 27.03 \$ 27.84 \$ 28.68 \$ 29.54 \$ 30.42 \$ 31.36	\$ 29.54	\$ 30.42	\$ 31.36
	-	-		•											

Cardiology Coordinator Tech Services, Certified Sterilization Technician, Endoscopy Technician, Financial Counselor, Lead Customer Service Representative HME, Lead	Instor Tec	h Services,	Certified 5	terilization	1 Technicia	ın, Endosc	opy Techn	Ician, Final	icial Coun	selor, Leac	i Custome	r Service R	epresental	tive HME,	Lead
instrumentation Specialist, Lead Patient Access Associate, Lead Pre-Admission Technician, Send Out Specialist/Philebotomist, Staffing Coordinator, Surgical Inventory Case	ecialist, Le	ad Patient	Access Ass	ociate, Lei	ad Pre-Adr	nission Te	chnician, S	end Out S	ecialist/P	hlebotomi	st, Staffing	; Coordina	tor, Surgic	al Invento	y Case
Range E.2	1	2	8	4	ro.	9	7	8	6	10	11	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	13	14	15
724	\$ 18.84	\$ 18.84 \$ 19.56		\$ 21.08	\$ 21.88	\$ 22.72	\$ 23.59	\$ 24.49	\$ 25.22	\$ 25.98	\$ 26.76	5 20.30 \$ 21.08 \$ 21.88 \$ 22.72 \$ 23.59 \$ 24.49 \$ 25.22 \$ 25.98 \$ 26.76 \$ 27.56 \$ 28.39 \$ 28.39 \$ 29.24 \$ 30.14	\$ 28.39	\$ 29.24	\$ 30.14
9/29/2024 \$ 19.78 \$ 20.53	\$ 19.78	\$ 20.53		\$ 22.13	\$ 22.98	\$ 23.86	\$ 24.77	\$ 25.71	\$ 26.49	\$ 27.28	\$ 28.10	\$ 21.32 \$ 22.13 \$ 22.98 \$ 23.86 \$ 24.77 \$ 25.71 \$ 26.49 \$ 27.28 \$ 28.10 \$ 28.94 \$ 29.81 \$ 30.70 \$ 31.65	\$ 29.81	\$ 30.70	\$ 31.65
10/12/25 - 6/30/26 \$ 20.17 \$ 20.95	\$ 20.17	\$ 20.95	1	\$ 22.58	\$ 23.44	\$ 24.33	\$ 25.26	\$ 26.23	\$ 27.02	\$ 27.83	\$ 28.66	\$ 21.75 \$ 22.58 \$ 23.44 \$ 24.33 \$ 25.26 \$ 26.23 \$ 27.02 \$ 27.83 \$ 28.66 \$ 29.52 \$ 30.41 \$ 31.32 \$ 32.28	\$ 30.41	\$ 31.32	\$ 32.28
10/12/25-6/30/26 \$ 20.58 \$ 21.36	\$ 20.58	\$ 21.36	1	\$ 23.03	\$ 23.91	\$ 24.82	\$ 25.77	\$ 26.75	\$ 27.56	\$ 28.38	\$ 29.23	5 22.18 \$ 23.03 \$ 23.91 \$ 24.82 \$ 25.77 \$ 26.75 \$ 27.56 \$ 28.38 \$ 29.23 \$ 30.11 \$ 31.01 \$ 31.04 \$ 32.93	\$ 31.01	\$ 31.94	\$ 32.93
	nancial Coc	rdinator (I	Infusion Ur	it), Lead (roundske	eper, Lead	Instrumer	tation Spe	cialist, Me	intal Healt	h Worker,	Financial Coordinator (infusion Unit), Lead Groundskeeper, Lead Instrumentation Specialist, Mental Health Worker, Lead Groundskeeper	ndskeepe	L	
Range F	7	2	3	4	5	9	7	8	6	10	11	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	13	14	15
0/24	\$ 20.72	\$ 20.72 \$ 21.51	1 " "	\$ 23.18	\$ 24.07	\$ 24.99	\$ 25.94	\$ 26.94	\$ 27.74	\$ 28.58	\$ 29.43	5 22.33 \$ 23.18 \$ 24.07 \$ 24.99 \$ 25.94 \$ 26.94 \$ 27.74 \$ 28.58 \$ 29.43 \$ 30.32 \$ 31.23 \$ 32.16 \$ 33.15	\$ 31.23	\$ 32.16	\$ 33.15
10/13/24-10/11/25 \$ 21.13 \$ 21.94	\$ 21.13	\$ 21.94	ł	\$ 23.65	\$ 24.55	\$ 25.49	\$ 26.46	\$ 27.47	\$ 28.30	\$ 29.15	\$ 30.02	\$ 22.78 \$ 23.65 \$ 24.55 \$ 25.49 \$ 26.46 \$ 27.47 \$ 28.30 \$ 29.15 \$ 30.02 \$ 30.92 \$ 31.85 \$ 32.81 \$ 33.82	\$ 31.85	\$ 32.81	\$ 33.82
10/12/25 - 6/30/26 \$ 21.55 \$ 22.38	\$ 21.55	\$ 22.38	1 -	\$ 24.12	\$ 25.04	\$ 26.00	\$ 26.99	\$ 28.02	\$ 28.86	\$ 29.73	\$ 30.62	5 23.23 \$ 24.12 \$ 25.04 \$ 26.00 \$ 26.00 \$ 28.02 \$ 28.02 \$ 28.86 \$ 29.73 \$ 30.62 \$ 31.54 \$ 32.49 \$ 33.46 \$ 34.49	\$ 32.49	\$ 33.46	\$ 34.49

	en e	(MANAGEMENT)		Tanah
a l		8	6	8
ð l	2	2	5	5
2		S	v,	*^>
ī		22	×	-
£ I	2	2	*	2
l I		V.	v,	w
8		~	60	,00°5
ď l	**	**	0	5
2		w>		·
ulas Stress Testing Technician, Carpenter, General Maintenance III, Moneranica III/Mechanical, Iourneyman Flumber, Medical Laboratory Technician, Pohysomnographic Technician Non-Certified, Surgical Inventory Coordinator Lead			_	-000
2 3	~	400	0	-00 -08
2 3		40%	es.	est.
7 4		_	-	-
8 4		83	8	3
3 8	-	29.5		**
1 2	-	~	~	*
2 8		60) 14	8	2
4 2	=	27°5	24	8
ic Seress Testing Technician, Carpenter, General Maintenance III, General Maintenance III/Mechanical, Acumerman Flumber. Medical Laboratory Technician. Polysomnographic Technician Non-Certified, Surgical Inventory Coordinator Lead		Ś	*	S
¥ 44		X	400	×
3	9	$^{\circ}$	***	60°2
Ĭť		**	**	1,03
3 7			21	2
3 4	00	2	9	Š
ž Š		v	Ų,	w
97		**	yi-q	0
	7	60	9	0
1 4		3	S	S
1 E	8009	-		
4 4		7.5	⊘	9 8
			**	***
		-	-	-
8 8		7	0	3
1 5			^	1
		-	Ť,	,
8 0		45	8	X
2 4		23	×.	25
3 4		Š	\$	\$
8 6		ŝ	8	X
2 2	89	7.	×	X
		*	*	*
2 7		99	7.	62
# 1	~	100	×	Ž,
<u> 3</u> 2		\$	*/>	S
*		2	35	7.1
7	**	23		53
3		S	S	S
iller Room Operator, Cardiac			Ø	40
R		3		3
9	9	8		1/9
8	ĕ	2		Š
	2	3	S	272
4		3	S	15
(1)			*	~

		NO DE CONTRACTOR		
IAC Mechanic, Hyperbaric Off/Safety Coordinator, Lead Boiler Room Operator, Lead Carding Tech II, Lead Electrician, Polysomnographic Technician Certified, Respiratory Therapist HME, Surgical Technologist		40.4	-	443
9 I		o	ô	Money.
2 I		48	4	*#
chanic, Hyperbaric Off/Safety Coordinator, Lead Bolier Room Operator, Lead Cardiac Tech III, Lead Electrician, Pobysomnographic Technician Certified, Respiratory Therapist HME, Surgical Technologist		~ h	~	4.5
2 [***	92	440
¥ I	*	60	9	S
16 I		er.	60	**
6 I	100	44	5	~
8 [903	er's	0
§	*	2	80	60
LI	-	en.	49.3	m
9 I		8	*	*^
3 I		60)	4-4	40
4	-	80	7	445
5		MP.	N.	44
2		*	1.7	1/3
		***		0
¥ I		-0	45%	0
3	•	ŵ?	24	en s
		*	4	4
2		1	40	1.
-	6	107	3	0
X I		40	69	65%
E #		\$	5	50
- M		7	***	-
¥ \$		*		6
7 4		***	×	A
0 <u>e</u>		₩.	43	4/5
E %		274	*3	
3 X		3	24	6
8 9		100	**	84%
8 B		5	~ >	₩.
		6	64	9
y I		400	0	40
8 -XI		80)	èn,	er's
2 3		~	S	~
الا يز		ers)	-6	100
3 J		***	66	*
3 Bi		***	65	#95
2 2		5	4/3	**
ご 計		4	0	O
8 2		***		
A y		7.	1/4	W.
夏 夏		~	*	**
a ei	1	42	40-4	66
5 V		0	9	-
. I		2.4	~	
a l		S	43	577
		63	6	i e
0		0	2	***
*	Ш	~	1	
3		1/2	8	8
2			-	
È		9	-6	2
J	Ш	7	14	*
		*	*	**
6		w	-	983
4		3	3	0
Q		***		~
2	332	8	S	
Z.			1	0/11/25 - 6/30/76
		2	S	IŠ
No.		3	S	2
8	-	5		3
6	2	10/1/23-6/30/24		ķ
#	2	IS		S
2		8		E
	100	-		Ø

Oytotechnologist. to	MWK.	Topics of		M. Mechanic, Lead Pohysomographic Tech, IPN (ED, Impatient Care), Marketing Representative, 1988. Medical Technologist, Radiologis Technologist. Radiologis Technologist ICM, Respiratory Therapist, Surgical Technologist Certified		V (ED, Espe N. Respirat			Acpreses			Technolog	it. Red	oyk Tech	otopist.
Ranger	1	3	•		•		1	8		10	-		1		1.5
10/1/23-6/30/24	\$ 27.57	\$ 28.63	\$ 29.72	\$ 30.85	\$ 32.03	\$ 33.26	\$ 34.53	\$ 35.85	\$ 38.92	\$ 38.03	\$ 39.17	\$ 60.34	\$ 41.55	\$ 42.80	\$ 44.12
0/13/24 - 10/11/25	\$ 28.12	S 28 S	\$ 30.31	\$ 31.47	\$ 32.67	\$ 33.92	\$ 35.22	\$ 38.56	\$ 37.66	\$ 38.79	\$ 39.95	\$ 41.15	\$ 42.39	\$ 43.66	\$ 4500
32/02/9 - 52/21/01	69 82 5	\$ 29.78	\$ 30.92	\$ 32.10	\$ 33.33	3 24 60	\$ 35.92	\$ 37.29	\$ 33 43	\$ 39.56	\$ 40.75	\$ 41.97	\$ 43.23	\$ 44.53	\$ 45.90

			800	44
	Ш	Ö	8	ō
		\$	8	5
		S	40	
		-	-	****
		32	6-4 6-5	2
	**	2	0.0	63
		*2	*8	4
		W	44	v
		8	er)	ř
	-	40	-	0
	1936		****	-
	(B)	40%	10	-
	~	~	53	0
	***	-4	49	8
		٧.	1/1	V
	200	-		-
		ŏ.	8	7
	2000 2000	40%	3	u
	38.			
	**	41	4,	*
		(2)	92	-
			9	
	-	*	*4	
		4/5	S	ų
	-			-
		3	2	*
	æ.	014		
		*		*
		**	10/31	*
	180	425	1	6
		2	9.3	*
	660	23	**	*
		~	in	v
	1000	_	-	-
O		£	8	Ś
*	-	625	Ö	c
4		**	**	*
	U.S.	**	*/>	*
	##E		44	
		O.	Z	1.8
	9	Sec.	20	0
		N.		
	-		-	_
		2	4-4	3
		3	2	
		673	W.	*
	臘	*	\$ /\$	*
	730		-	
		4	1	8
	*	2	2	2.5
		اب		
		-		
	381	9.9	€2	£
	-	- 4	3	
		40,0	6973	*
		49	6/2	*
		****		-
	1	×	38	
	~	***	44	2
				Ľ
	- 2			Ľ
		**	-	•
		29%	***	ě
		v,	S	٠
	132	-		۳
		*	B	7
	2	2	444	2
	O	2	15	1
	鬖	3	-	۱
	8	*	Na. NATATATAS S 32.77 S 33.86 S 35.00 S 36.18 S 37.41 S 38.68 S 40.00 S 41.37 S 42.49 S 43.64 S 44.83 S 46.05 S 47.31 S 48.61 S 49.98	¥
CODESS:	1,000	2.3	4600	1.8

:					•	LPN Floa	LPN Float Evening/Night	Night							
. Day of Land	-	,	8	4	r.	9	7	8	6	27	Ħ	12	13	14	15
LPN PIOSI CVC/ INIBINI	•	7	,	•				+						2000	200
5 0/1/22.6/30/24 C 34 17 C 35 20 S	C 34 17	4 35 20	5 36 31	< 36.31 5.37 47 5.38.67 5.39.92 5.41.22 5.42.56 5.43.79 5.45.95 5.47.15 5.48.39 5.49.66 5.21.00	\$ 38.67	5 39.92	\$ 41.22	\$ 42.56	\$ 43.66	\$ 44.79	\$ 45.95	\$ 47.15	\$ 48.39	> 49.66	\$ 51.00
47 /or /o-c7 /7 /or	4 51.16	2									-			1000	
10/12/24_10/11/25 C 24 81 C 25 90 C	¢ 24 81	C 35 90	\$ 37.04	< 37.04 < 38.72 < 39.45 < 40.72 < 42.04 < 43.41 < 44.53 < 45.68 < 46.87 < 48.09 < 49.35 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.05 < 50.0	\$ 39.45	\$ 40.72	\$ 42.04	\$ 43,41	\$ 44.53	\$ 45.68	2 46.87	\$ 48.09	\$ 49.35	\$ 50.05	> 27.07
C7/77/07 - 47/CT/01	10.0											2000	, , ,	77.4	20 62
\$ 55 50 5 5 50 56 5 50 50 5 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	C 25 50	< 36 67	c 37 78	< 37.78 < 38.99 < 40.24 < 41.53 < 42.88 < 44.28 < 45.42 < 46.60 < 47.81 < 49.06 < 50.34 < 51.86 < 53.08	\$ 40.24	\$ 41.53	\$ 42.88	\$ 44.28	\$ 45.42	\$ 46.60	5 47.81	\$ 49.06	> 50.34	3 31.00	3 33.00
10/15/20-67/21/01	30.00	,													

Cardiovascular Technician, Cat Scan Technologist, Point of Care Coordinator/MI, Kadiological lech-Mammoglaphy, Rad lech-Mammoglaphy, Rad Rechnician, Cat Scan Technologist, Point of Care Coordinator/MI, Radiovascular Technologist	inician, Ca	nt Scan Ted	chnologist,	Point of C	are Coord	nator/MI	ist, Point of Care Coordinator/MI, Kadlological Tech-Mammography, Kad Te	Cal lecn-IV. Canior Pad	iammogra Inlosic Te	pny, kad chaoloeis	ECH-INIGH	e de la company	THE PART OF THE PA		
			ž	ocedures,	Satellite	an Coolar		100000	219000						
1 00000	-	2	3	4	5	ø	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	«	6	10	11	12	13	14	15
		,	,					1			1			00 11.	C
02 15 2 15 05 05 2 Ac/ac/2 cz/ 5/00	C 00 3	C 21 50	C 22 70	50 22 5	5 35 74	\$ 36.59	2 27 70 5 22 95 5 35 74 5 36 59 5 37 99 5 39 43 5 40.61 5 41.83 5 43.09 5 44.38 5 45.71 5 47.08 5 48.53 3 20 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	\$ 39.43	\$ 40.61	\$ 41.83	\$ 43.09	\$ 44.38	5 45./1	\$ 47.08	\$ 48.53
+7 /nc /a-c7/7 /nt	J. J. J.	31.30	2												4
10/12/24 10/11/7E C 20 04 C 37 13	C 20 04	C 27 12	4 33 35	5 34 63	\$ 35.95	\$ 37.32	\$ 38.75	\$ 40.22	\$ 41.43	\$ 42.67	\$ 43.95	\$ 45.27	\$ 46.63	\$ 48.03	
10/11/01 - 47/CT /OT	J. 20.24	4 36.13											, ,		4
10/12/75 6/20/76 C 31 SE C 37 77	C 21 S6	C 22 77	\$ 34.02	5 35 37	\$ 36.67	\$ 38.07	\$ 39.52	\$ 41.02	\$ 42.26	\$ 43.52	\$ 44.83	5 46.17	\$ 47.56	\$ 48.99	< 34 07 < 35 37 < 36.67 < 38.07 < 38.07 < 39.52 < 41.02 < 42.26 < 43.52 < 44.83 < 46.17 < 47.56 < 48.99 < 50.49
10/10/0 - 67/71/01	32.30		20:: 6												

				Rad Tech-	Mammor	raphy Leve	II. Rad T	Rad Tech-Mammography Level II, Rad Tech, Special Procedures Cert	Procedu	es Cert					
i Caraca	-	,		4	5	9	7	8	6	ន	11	12	13	11 12 13 14	15
10/1/22-6/30/74 < 31.85 < 33.07	21.85	\$ 33.07	\$ 34 33	\$ 35.65	\$ 37.01	\$ 38.42	\$ 39.89	\$ 41.40	\$ 42.65	\$ 43.92	\$ 34 37 \$ 35.65 \$ 37.01 \$ 38.42 \$ 39.89 \$ 41.40 \$ 42.65 \$ 43.92 \$ 45.24 \$ 46.60 \$ 48.00 \$ 49.44 \$ 50.95	\$ 46.60	\$ 48.00	\$ 49.44	\$ 50.95
10/ 1/ 53 Of 10 101		,				1		20.00	37.50	00 4 # 0	\$ 51 07 3 6 00 0 5 50 00 0 5 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0	C 47 C2	20 00 3	C 50 43	\$ 51 97
10/13/24-10/11/25 \$ 32.49 \$ 33.73	\$ 32.49	\$ 33.73	5 35.02	\$ 36.36	\$ 37.75	\$ 39.19	\$ 40.69	> 45.73	3 43.3U	2 44.00	CT.0+ ¢	57,75	2 40,50	2	
10/11/05 = 6/20/76 C 22 14 C 34 41	\$ 23.14	< 34 41	< 35.72	\$ 37.09	\$ 38.50	\$ 39.97	\$ 41.50	\$ 43.08	\$ 44.37	\$ 45.70	c 38,70 5 38,50 5 41,50 5 43,37 5 45,70 5 47,07 5 48,48 5 49,94 5 51.44 5 53,01	\$ 48.48	\$ 49.94	\$ 51.44	\$ 53.01
10/15/53-0/30/50	1														-
										-					-

	ot Coan Te	ch Cartifia	Cas Can Tack Cartified Echarardingrapher (Non-Registered). Nuclear Medicine Technologist, Ultrasonographer, Ultrasonographer KN	dingrapher	(Non-Reg	stered).	Juciest Me	dicine Tec	hnologist,	Ultrasono	grapher, L	Hrasonogi	apher KN		
3	27 11870 18	2010													,
Napaco K	-	~	m	3 4 5 6 7 8	ı'n	ø	^	œ	6	10	11	12	13	9 10 11 12 13 14 15	13
					-										0000
10/11/22 5/20/20 5 22 27 5 30 64	C 22 37	< 34 64	< 35 97 < 37.34 < 38.77 < 40.25 < 41.79 < 43.38 < 44.68 < 46.02 < 47.40 < 48.82 < 50.29 < 51.80 < 5.53.39	\$ 37.34	\$ 38.77	\$ 40.25	\$ 41.79	\$ 43.38	\$ 44.68	\$ 46.02	\$ 47.40	5 48.82	5 50.29	\$ 51.80	\$ 53.39
10/17/23-0/20/CT	5		:5:55												
10/12/74 10/11/75 C 34 04 C 35 34	\$ 24.04	25 34	< 36.69 < 38.09 < 39.54 S 41.05 S 42.62 S 44.25 S 45.57 S 46.94 S 48.35 S 49.80 S 51.29 S 52.83 S 54.46	\$ 38.09	\$ 39.54	\$ 41.05	\$ 42.62	\$ 44.25	\$ 45.57	\$ 46.94	\$ 48.35	5 49.80	5 51.29	5 52.83	\$ 54.40
10/13/64 TO 101/01/01	5		50:00											40.00	
10/12/25 5/20/25 5 34 72 5 36 04	C 24 77	26.04	< 37 42 < 38 85 S 40.33 S 41.87 S 43.47 S 45.13 S 46.48 S 47.88 S 49.32 S 50.79 S 52.32 S 53.89 S 55.54	\$ 38.85	\$ 40.33	\$ 41.87	\$ 43.47	\$ 45.13	\$ 46.48	\$ 47.88	\$ 49.32	\$ 50.79	5 52.32	\$ 53.89	\$ 55.54
07/06/0-67/71/01	7			20.00											

	CT/MRI Te	CT/MRI Technologist.	Echocardi	ographer	(Registered	J), MRI Te	chnologis	t, Ultrason	Echocardiographer (Registered), MRI Technologist, Ultrasonographer Certified, Ultrasonographer Certified KN	Sertified, L	Itrasonogi	rapher Cer	tified KN		
Range	1	2	8	4	2	9	7	8	6	01	10 11 12 13 14	12	13	14	15
10/1/23-6/30/24 \$ 36.71 \$ 38.11	\$ 36.71	-	\$ 39.57	\$ 41.08	\$ 42.65	\$ 44.28	\$ 45.97	\$ 47.71	\$ 39.57 \$ 41.08 \$ 42.65 \$ 44.28 \$ 45.97 \$ 47.71 \$ 49.15 \$ 50.62 \$ 52.14 \$ 53.70 \$ 55.31 \$ 56.97 \$ 58.72	\$ 50.62	\$ 52.14	\$ 53.70	\$ 55.31	\$ 56.97	\$ 58.72
10/13/24 - 10/11/25 \$ 37.44 \$ 38.87	\$ 37.44	\$ 38.87	\$ 40.36	\$ 41.90	\$ 43.50	\$ 45.16	\$ 46.89	\$ 48.67	\$ 40.36 \$ 41.90 \$ 43.50 \$ 45.16 \$ 46.89 \$ 48.67 \$ 50.13 \$ 51.63 \$ 53.18 \$ 54.78 \$ 56.42 \$ 58.11 \$ 59.90	\$ 51.63	\$ 53.18	\$ 54.78	\$ 56.42	\$ 58.11	\$ 59.90
10/12/25 - 6/30/26 \$ 38.19 \$ 39.65	\$ 38.19	\$ 39.65	\$ 41.17	\$ 42.74	\$ 44.37	\$ 46.07	\$ 47.82	\$ 49.64	5 41.17 5 42.74 5 44.37 5 46.07 5 47.82 5 49.64 5 51.13 5 52.67 5 54.25 5 55.87 5 57.55 5 59.28 5 61.09	\$ 52.67	\$ 54.25	\$ 55.87	\$ 57.55	\$ 59.28	\$ 61.09

			Echo Tech/	'Vascular T	ech, Lead	Echo Tech	Echo Tech/Vescular Tech, Lead Echo Tech (Registered), MRI Technologist/MR Safety Officer	1), MRI Te	chnologist	WMR Safe	ty Officer				
Range M	-	2	3	4	ď	9	4 5 6 7 8	8	6	9 10 11 12 13 14 15	11	12	13	14	15
10/1/23-6/30/24 \$ 40.38 \$ 41.92	\$ 40.38	\$ 41.92	\$ 43.52	\$ 45.19	\$ 46.91	\$ 48.70	\$ 43.52 \$ 45.19 \$ 46.91 \$ 48.70 \$ 50.56 \$ 52.49 \$ \$ 54.06 \$ 55.68 \$ 57.35 \$ \$ 59.07 \$ 60.85 \$ 62.67 \$ \$ 64.59	\$ 52.49	\$ 54.06	\$ 55.68	\$ 57.35	\$ 59.07	\$ 60.85	\$ 62.67	\$ 64.59
10/13/24 - 10/11/25 \$ 41.19 \$ 42.76	\$ 41.19	\$ 42.76	\$ 44.39	\$ 46.09	\$ 47.85	\$ 49.68	\$ 44.39 \$ 46.09 \$ 47.85 \$ 49.68 \$ 51.58 \$ 53.54 \$ 55.14 \$ 56.80 \$ 58.50 \$ 60.26 \$ 62.06 \$ 63.92 \$ 65.89	\$ 53.54	\$ 55.14	\$ 56.80	\$ 58.50	\$ 60.26	\$ 62.06	\$ 63.92	\$ 65.89
10/12/25 - 6/30/26 \$ 42.01 \$ 43.62	\$ 42.01	\$ 43.62	\$ 45.28	\$ 47.01	\$ 48.81	\$ 50.67	\$ 45.28 \$ 47.01 \$ 48.81 \$ 50.67 \$ 52.61 \$ 54.61 \$ 56.25 \$ 57.93 \$ 59.67 \$ 61.46 \$ 63.30 \$ 65.20 \$ 67.20	\$ 54.61	\$ 56.25	\$ 57.93	\$ 59.67	\$ 61.46	\$ 63.30	\$ 65.20	\$ 67.20

SCHEDULE A

	UNAP Other		
Per Diem Rates	<u> 10/1/2023</u>	<u>10/13/2024</u>	<u>10/12/2025</u>
Respiratory Therapist	\$ 40.31	\$ 41.72	\$ 42.97
Echocardiographer, Registered	\$ 53.13	\$ 54.99	\$ 56.64
Echo Tech/Vascular Tech	\$ 58.44	\$ 60.49	\$ 62.30

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT - OUTSOURCING

The Parties hereby agree that the Hospital will not subcontract Environmental Services work (other than as has been the practice) during the term of the Collective Bargaining Agreement. This Agreement will sunset at the expiration of the Collective Bargaining Agreement on June 30, 2029.

For the Union

For the Hospital

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Kent County Memorial Hospital (the "Hospital") and United Nurses and Allied Professionals, Local 5008 (the "Union") agree that from time to time the Union may request to hold elections that may not conform to 29 C.F.R. 103.30 (appropriate bargaining units in the healthcare industry). Under such circumstances, the parties will be guided by the community of interest standard as it existed before Specialty Healthcare.

Any dispute arising out of this will be mediated before the Federal Mediator. This agreement will sunset on June 30, 2029.

For the Union For the Hospital For the Hospital

60

APPENDIX A

Environmental Services Department PTO Policy

Purpose: to Provide Adequate Coverage for Employees PTO

- 1) All vacation requests must be in writing in duplicate copies on **PTO** slip.
- 2) Anyone using July 4th week, Labor Day week, Thanksgiving week or Christmas week will not be eligible for the following year unless no other requests have been made.
- 3) **PTO** for the summer schedule; May thru October will be approved by seniority when handed in by March 31st. Approvals will be returned by the first week of April.
- 4) **PTO** for winter schedule; November thru April will be approved by seniority when handed in by September 30th. Approvals will be returned by the first week of October.
- 5) All other **PTO** request will be handled on a first serve basis.
- 6) **PTO** request must be made one week in advance.
- 7) Employees with: 5 weeks PTO can use up to 4 weeks in succession
 - 4 weeks PTO can use up to 3 weeks in succession
 - 3 weeks PTO can use up to 2 weeks in succession
 - 2 weeks PTO can use up to 1 week in succession
- 8) **PTO** will not be booked unless you have time in your **PTO** bank. **PTO** cannot be reserved based on future accruals.
- 9) No PTO will be granted day before and after Thanksgiving, Christmas and New Years
- 10) No PTO will be granted for a scheduled holiday to work.

Due To The Size Of The Environmental Service Department,
The Following Department Policy Will Apply Effective
February 1, 2009

MON-FRI

SAT-SUN

- (4) Day Shift PTO will be granted
- (1) Day Shift PTO will be granted
- (2) Evening Shift PTO will be granted
- (1) Evening Shift PTO will be granted
- (1) Morning Shift PTO will be granted
- (1) Morning Shift PTO will be granted

The weeks of Labor Day- Christmas and New Year's only one PTO will be granted per shift.

Any personal needs conflicting with this policy will be reviewed on an individual basis. Additional weeks can be taken when they do not interfere with this policy or our scheduling. Changes can be made thru Management discretion.

APPENDIX B

Snow Removal: It is the policy of Kent Hospital that Employees (all shifts) who have volunteered for snow removal shall not work more than 16 continuous hours.

A. Snow Team Captains: Responsible for the management of snow team members and/or contractors to ensure proper and safe snow removal.

Compensation:

- \$75/24 hr. period if either called in to work or asked to continue a regular shift. (flat fee)
- Payment will be employee's normal base rate, plus applicable shift and/or weekend differentials. If applicable, overtime will be paid in accordance with the Overtime Policy.
- Maximum total 16 continuous hours worked with minimum 8 hours shift off
- Minimum Snow Team hours worked is 3 hours.
- B. Snow Team Members: Report to Snow Team Captain and complete duties as assigned.

Compensation:

- \$50/24 hr. period if either called in to work or asked to continue a regular shift. (flat fee)
- Payment will be employee's normal base rate, plus applicable shift and/or weekend differentials. If applicable, overtime will be paid in accordance with the Overtime Policy.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Notwithstanding anything in the Collective Bargaining Agreement to the contrary, the Hospital agrees it will not outsource bargaining unit work through June 30, 2026. Outsourcing will then be part of the reopener referred to in the Article 48 of this agreement.

Jasod 2/10/2025 Patrice Com

Kent County Memorial Hospital

UNAP, Local 5008

Notes:

